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PHSC plc

STRATEGIC REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2023

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
»  Underlying EBITDA of £0.306m comparcd to £0.274m in the prior year

»  Profit after tax of £0.243m compared to a loss after tax of £0.631m in the prior year, the latter mainly due to writing
off goodwill in respect of the Security Division

= Group revenue of £3.438m, down from £3.57 Im in the prior ycar

+  Group net assets increased to £3.638m from £3.513m

*  Statutory earnings per share of 2.05p compared to a loss per share of 4.76p in the prior year
= Cash rescrves of £0.750m at the year end up from £0.649m for the prior year

*  TFinal dividend of 1.0p proposed, making a total of 1.5p for the year compared with 1.0p last ycar

31.3.23 313122
e e i &
Profit/¢ioss) before rax 304,598 (577,798)
Less: interest received (1,346) (388)
Add: depreciation 63,034 58,812
Add. impairment of B2BSG Solutions Limited goodwill - 676,178
Add: impairment of [nspection Services (UKD Limited goodwitl - 117,240
Underlying EBITDA® 366,286 274,044

Underlying EBITDA s calculated as earmings before inrerest. tax, depreciation and mmpairment charges This is used by the board as a measure of
underlying trading and has been provided (o assist shareholders in understanding the Group s trading actvikics

The Company confirms that, subject to sharcholder approval at its forthcoming Annual General Meecting (AGM), an
increcased final dividend of 1 Op will be payable on 13 October 2023 to sharcholders on the register on 29 Sepwember
2023,



PHSC plc

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Jor the year endod 31 Mareh 2023

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

I am pleased to report that the Group has built on the post-pandemic progress made in the prior year and has generally
returned to normal trading across all subsidiaries. With the carrying value of our Security Division having been written
down to zero in 2021-22, there is no impairment to report for 2022-23. Accordingly, the Group returned to profitability
and the board is proposing an increased final dividend to sharcholders.

The board has determined that a higher distribution is justified in conjunction with a planned third share buyiack
programme, which will be confirmed, and further details announced as soon as practicable following publication of
this Annual Reporr udiising the existing authority. ‘Lo maintain tlexibility, the board is seeking renewed authority at
the forthcoming 2023 AGM for further potential share buybacks however shareholders should not assume that such
renewed authority, if granted, will necessarily be utilised.

Individual subsidiary performance is considered in some detail later in this report.

GENERAL BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Security Division

Having written off the carrying value of this part of the Group's business in 2021-22, management focussed on how best
to commence a rebuilding of the division through better cost controf and improved margins. This is a2 medium-term
objective and is subject to variables outside the Company’s control such as exchange rates, costs of shipping and the
generd] economic climate as it affects the retaii sector. Prior to central charges and some write-down of slow-moving
stock, the business broke even over the year under review. There were increases to both revenues and costs, however
profit margins remained suppressed due to the aforementioned external factors. It is anticipated that there will be some
respite in that transportation costs have progressively reduced from the 2021-22 highs and the business has been able
to raise prices on some contracts. The client base remains overwhelmingly centred on the retail sectot and includes

supermarkets, department stores and garden centres.

Systems Division

Results from this part of the Group’s business were extremely encouraging and the division built upon the good progress
made in 2021-22. Revenue was up more than £100,000, the majority of which fed through to the bottom line as evident
in the more detailed financial summary later in this report.

Consultancy salcs were strong throughout the year and benefitted from long-term, valuable contracts on safety support
for regular clients. Sales of UK Responsible Person services in connection with the supply of mcdical devices were
higher than anticipated due to both additional clients, and increased work from the existing client base following

changes in the regulatory framework for registration.

Training delivery returned to pre-pandemic levels and the year ended with strong sales figures for both in-house and

public training.

Safety Division

Progress was made in respect of the profitability of servicing clients in the education and ieisure sectors, although higher
revenues were adversely impacted by the higher costs incurred in connection with delivering our services. Additional
costs were expericnced throughour the division, compounded by staff salaries being increased twice during the year to
mitigate against persistently high inflation rates and rising domestic energy costs.

Total revenue was markedly lower due to a large commission-only agreement in respect of COVID-19 testing during the
pandemic which positively skewed the 2021-22 results.



PHSC plc

STRATEGIC REPORT fcontined)

Sfor the year ended 31 Marck 2023

Cash reserves

Cash at bank increased year-on-year from approximately £649,000 10 £750,000 reflecting the cash gencrative nature of
our operations. The total cost of servicing dividends, maintaincd at the same level, was lower. as a result of approximately
2.8 million fewer ordinary shares being in issue following the successful buyback programme implemented in the prior
year As noted above, it {s proposed that, subject to shareholder approval at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend
be increased to return a greater proportion of cash to shareholders, given that the Group remains cash-generative with
excess reserves for its currently foresecable requirements,

The Group's cash position following payment of the proposed cnhanced final dividend and planned further sharc
buyback programme, should be more than sufficient for all currently anticipated expenditure. To underpin this position
and provide flexibility/headroom the Group also has a currently unutilised facility with HSBC Bank ple of an initiat
£50,000 in the uniikely event it is required.

The Group's only borrowings relate to certain lcases in respect of land and buildings and motor vehicles, further details
of which are provided in note 13.

Net asset value

The Group's net asset value of approximately £3.638m equates to a little over 30p per ordinary sharc and has remained
coasistently higher than the Company's market share price on AIM. The equivalent net asser value at the end of the
previous ycar was circa 3 per cent. lower, at approximately £3 313m.

Outlook

Management expectations across the Group, despite the slow start to the year based on Q1 figures, arc that 202324 has
the potential to be another successful year. Wherc it is practical to do so. we will seek to apply modest price increascs
to our fee rates in a bid to recover the majority of the extra costs we are facing. In the current environment, some arcas
of expenditure are ailmost certain to continue to rise but others including energy bills and shipping of security products
appear more stable. Recruitment and retention of personnel remains challenging and represents our most significant
cost category.

Each subsidiary currently appears to be on a stable footing and are well placed to continue to trade profitably and
generate cash flow over the remainder of the current financial year.

Trading update
Unaudited Group management accounts for (21 of the current financial vear show total revenue of approximately
£0.754m and EBITDA of approximately £49,100 (Q1 2022-23 £0.862m and £0.1m respectively).

Dividends

A total dividend of 1.0p per ordinary share (£124.020) was paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2022, An
interim dividend of 0.5p in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2023 was paid in February 2023 (£59,190)
and, subject to sharcholder approval, a final dividend of 1.0p to be paid from earnings from the financial year ended 31
March 2023 is proposed to be paid in October 2023, representng an increase of 0.5p or 30 per cent. on last year's total

PERFORMANCE BY TRADING SUBSIDIARY

The Group currently utilises the following key performance indicators (KPls).

Total revenues

Total revenuesare reviewed cach month across the Group to provide the board with aready measure of how well the Group
and its underlying businesses are performing relative to historical data. It enables any trend to be detected, interpreted
and acted upon as appropriate. Consolidated Group revenues for the year decreased by approximately 3 7% but when
a £400k adjusiment is made to the 2021-22 turnover for a one-off contrzct with a single customer for COVID-19 testing
services.a 7 3% increase in murnover is evident, which the board views as being a good outturn in the current chatlenging
market conditions.



PHSC plc

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Sfor the year ended 31 March 2023

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation (underlying EBITDA}

The Group’s underlying EBITDA increased from £274,044 in 2021-22 to £366,286 in 202223,

Staff turnover

Staff turnover is closely menitored as the key asset of each subsidiary is its workforce. Recruiting replacement staff is
an expensive task and it is not always possible to compensate for the specialised knowledge that may be lost when an
employee departs. During the vear, 3 peopie left the employment of the Group and no new staff were recruited, resulting
in 34 employees at the year end, excluding 7 PHSC plc and subsidiary directors.

Pre-tax profit/(loss) per subsidiary before Group management charges
Profit before tax and management charges is reviewed by cach subsidiary and by the board every month. Each subsidiary
director provides a commentary to enable the board to establish whether interventon of any kind is appropriate,

A summary of the results and activities of our trading subsidiaries is set out below. Performance is based on those factors
within a subsidiary director’s control, such that resuits are shown exclusive of management charges and taxation and
any impairment provision judged to be necessary. The parent company covers its own management costs by levying a
charge on each subsidiary and derives other income through the receipt of dividends from its subsidiaries.

B2BSG Solutions Limdted (B2BSG)
«  2023:revenues of £829 900 yvielding a loss of £9,100 after a slow-moving stock write down of £9,100

+ 2022 revenues of £749.200 vietding a loss of £79,200 after a slow-moving stock write down of £35,000

B2BSG ended the year with sales that were £80k higher than in 2021-22. An end of year adjustment for currency
revaluation resuited in a total ncgative loss variance of £7.3k due to adverse exchange rates over the coursc of the
year. Effectively, the business traded at around break-even before management charges and a £9.1k yearend stock
provision. This compares very favourably with the loss sustained in the previous year.

A two-year contract with a national supermarket group, awarded before the Brexit protocol was known, came to
an end in March 2023. Costs associated with this particular contract had led to an aimost total elimination of gross
margin. Costs were higher than anticipaicd due to an Irish VAT registration being required, product inflation which we
werc unable to recover as prices were fixed, and an escalation in transport costs. Upon its expiry, this contract was
formally renegotiated and rencwed for a further two years on much more favourable terms, which should facilitate the

COmMpany’s recovery strategy.

Another national supermarket chain is embarking on a refurbishment exercise for its security infrastructure in 2023-
24, and B2BSG are in the early stages of installing equipment to assist them in carrying out their programme.

The mix of clients now has morc of a bias towards food retail. Some economists are suggesting that therc may be signs
of recovery in bricks and mortar retail activity more generally which, if borne out, would bode well for B2BSG.

Inspection Services (UK) Limited (ISL)
= 2023 revenucs of £198,100 yielding a profit of £7,000

* 2022 revenues of £186,600 yiclding a profit of £8,7060

ISL achieved increased revenues of £198,100, being £11,500 ahead of the prior year’s total sales of £186,600. The
resulting profit achieved fell by £1,700 year-on-year to £7.000. The improvement in revenues was more than offset by
higher costs incurred in detivering the services, most notably in tertus of travel and accommodation charges, which
increased by almost £3,000. Subcontractor costs rose by £2,500 and were approximately 40% higher than in 2021-
22. Staff salaries were increased rwice during the year to mitigate against high inflation figures and rising domestic cnergy
costs. Such pay adjustments were necessary but resulted in around £4,000 of unplanned additional expenditure. Most
of ISL's work is sourced through insurance brokers in exchange for commission payments. Broker commissions
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continuedy

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

were similar to rhe prior year. There were no bad debrs arising during the year and the company remains cashfiow-
positive. Overall, its client portfolio remains stable, with most work comprising repeat business.

Personnel Health & Safety Consultants Limited (PHSCL)
« 2023 revenues of £806.700 yiclding a profit of £268,300

*  2022:revenues of £1,283,100 viclding a profit of £351,000

Trading returned to more normal levels after maximising opportunities for safety and risk management brought about by

the COVID-19 pandemic. PHSCL's revenue and profit were lower than the previous year but in line with management’s

expeciations. During the year, online systems continued to be reviewed to help streamline the business and optimise

the company's ability to pitch for larger contracts as wcll as to widen its service offering 1o existing clients. There has

been an increasing level of interest expressed from both prospective and current customers as a result of applying

a personal touch whereby customers are able to speak to a person rather than automated support. This approach

will continuc to be promoted whilst developing ways to enhance services with online systems that also adopt a

more personal perspective The business's main challenge at the current time is its ability to attract the right level of
consultant expertise duc (0 a general skills shortage which gocs wider than PHSCL. Subject to securing the services of .
appropriately qualified fee-earning staff there is confidence in respect of opportunities to grow revenue.

QCS International Limited (QCS)
» 2023 revenues of £834,600 yielding a profit of £272,100

*+  2022:revenues of £724,100 yielding a profit of £189,600

Trading has returned to pre-COVID-19 levels, with consultancy saies exceeding £400,000 for the first time. There
continues to be a high level of repeat business combined with income from ncw clieats with whom long-term
relationships will be sought Income from the UK Responsible Person service for medical devices exceeded
management’s expectations by a considerable margin due 1w a mixwure of new clients and increased work from the
existing chient basc tollowing changes in the regulatory framework for registration. 1raining is now back at pre-
pandemic levels; the year ended with very positive sales figures for both public and in-house courses, with combined
training income approaching £350.000 for the year. To meer and manage demarnd, the company calis upon the services
of consultants employed by other Group companies as appropriate and has ambitions to grow revenues in the vear
ahead. Profit for the year was £272,100 (compared to £189,600 in 2021-22) which reflects a combination of improved
sales and tight cost control.

Quality Leisure Managernent Limited (QLM)
» 2023 revenues of £402,400 yielding 4 profit of £137,500

* 2022 revenues of £323,600 yielding a profit of £106,900

Business started strongly in 2022 for both auditing and training as there was pentup demand post the pandemic
abating. Training requirements dropped slightly towards the latter part of the financial year though training via
video conferencing remained popular. In addition o reducing staff fravel time and costs recharged to clients, video
conferencing affords greater accessibility to those clients only reguiring a small number of participanis or for those who
were unable to attend the in-house delivered course.

Demand for audits remained strong, involving support for clients in verifying processes and procedures as their faciliries
returned to fully operational status. Both audit and training income streams were significantly up on management's
expectations.

Consultancy in relation to health and safety and quality systerns was a significant source of income in 2022-23 with QLM
supporting clients in the development of their policies, processes, procedures and systems.
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S’I'RATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Expert witness work was lower than in previous years as leisure facilities were closed for significant periods during the
pandemic and UK courts are struggling to catch up with delays and postponements.

Cost of sales increased in proportion to income. Consultant and subcontractor salaries and fees were reflective of the

higher costs of delivery as well as greater activity.

RSA Environmental Health Limited (RSA)
+ 2023 revenues of £365,900 yielding a profit of £69,800

= 2022:revenues of £304,000 yielding a profit of £53,600

Annual revenue showed a 20% increase compared ta 2021-22 and the company is now trading at similar levels to those
experienced prior to the pandemic. The increase in sales led to profits not seen since 2018-19. The majority of income
streams were above expectations, with the exception of general health and safety consultancy services but this was only
because consultants’ fee earning time was being utilised for the provision of other services. Food safety consultancy has

seen some welcome growth over the last year.

Rather than employ additional members of staff, employees from elscwhere within the Group and trusted associates
were used to provide extra [ee-earning capability. Such strategy heiped to keep costs under control and enabled the
company to deal efficiently with the peaks and troughs in its workload.

[n previous years, the company’s focus has been to diversify its service offering and strengthen its presence in the
markets in which it operates. These efforts have continued and resulted in a more even spread of revenues across the
services provided. This will continue to be a focus to make the company more resilient.

SafetyMARK services saw revenucs continue to recover. Demand for these services remains strong especially within
the independent school's market. There is a high retention rate with schools demonstrating that they see value in the

services RSA offers.

Training services remain strong, with a focus on school-based Institution of Occupational Safety and Health (IOSH)
accredited training courses. These have proved very popular with schools and demand continues to be strong with

good profits achieved.

PHSC plc
* 2023 net loss of £442,300 before management charges, interest and dividends received

*  2022:net loss of £#409,200 before management charges, goodwill impairments, interest and dividends received

The Company incurs costs on behalf of the Group and does not generate any income; the costs relate to running an

AIM quoted Group

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Pandemic

The financial impact of the coronavirus pandemic continued to ease with business activity returning towards pre-
pandemic levels. Inevitably, there are legacy impacts in particular on the high street where consumers’ shopping habits
have shifted towards greater on-line ordering, and this represents a concern to the Security Division where retail outlets
form a significant part of its customer base. Conversely, the Systems and Safety Divisions are continuing to experience
a rebound in activity as clients catch up on projects that were previously deferred or cancelled. The Group's ability
to deliver services remately as an alternative to a face-to-face offering is more appealing to some customers and this

alternative continues 1o be offered where appropriate.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Regulatory/Marketplace

Approximately 50% of the Group’s work involves assisting organisations with the implementation of measures 10
meet regulatory requirements relating to heaith and safety at work, If the regulatory burden was to be substantially
lightened, for example if the government embarked upon a programme of radical deregulation, there could be less
demand for the Group's services. Changes to the operation of the employer’s liability insurance system, as proposed
in some quarters, could reducc the incentive for organisations to buy in claims-preventive services such as health and
safety advice. In mitigation of these risks, the board has diversified the Group’s range of offerings, for example, through
investing in its Systems Division and continues to explore non-regulatory areas of environmental work to add to the
current portfelio of services.

The Group's Security Diviston works almost exclusively in the retail sector, and this has continued to suffer as a result
of weak consumer demand on the high street and the move towards online purchasing, which accelerated during the
COVID-19 pandemic. Any further material deterioration in the retail sector and specifically in B2BSG's client base would
have a significant negative ¢ffect on the company’s and hence the Group’s prospects. To mitigate any future negative
effects, the Group wrote off the carrying value of its Security Division in 2021-22 in full and periodicalty reviews the
need to make financial provision against the value of stock held in its warehouse.

Techmolegical

The Group’s website is a primary source of new business If the website became inaccessible for protracted periods, or
was subject to “hacking”, this may prejudice the opportunity to obtain new business, Additionally, the increase in the
usc of the internct for satisfying business requirements may lead to a reduction in demand for face-to-face consultancy
services and the number of training courses commissioned may be affected by moves towards screen-based interactive
Icarning.

The subject of IT security is regularly reviewed by the board o ensure that appropriate strategies are in place. The
Aylesford pased businesses (PHSC ple, PHSCL and ISL) have been re-certified to Cyber Essentials stundard and all staff
across the Group have participated in on-line training to reduce the risk of falling victim to phishing and other such
scams. All bead office data is backed up to the Cloud and removeable hard drives attached to the physical server are
rotated on a daily basis

Personnel

Generally, there is 4an excess of demand over supply for health and safety professionals. Thosc with sufficient
qualifications and experience to be suitable for consultancy roles are in the minority. This constraint has the combined
cffect of making it difficult for the Group to source suitable personnel and having to offer higher remuneration packages
to attract them. The Group is dependent upon its current executive managemens teamn. Whilst it has entered into
contractual arrangements with the aim of securing the services of these personnel, the retention of their services
cannot be guaranteed. Accordingty, the loss of any key member of management of the Group may have an adverse
effect on the future of the Group's business. The Group and each subsidiary have contingency plans in place in the
event of incapacity of key personnel.

Geographical

The Group offers a nationwide service, but a number of organisations see benefit in using consultancies that are local
to them and internet search engincs favour local providers. With offices in Kent, Berkshire. Northamptonshire and
Scotland. the Group has a good geographical spread

Licences

The Group is reliant on licences and accreditations to be able to carry on its business. The temporary loss of. or failure
to maintain, any single licence or accreditation would be unlikefy to be matcrially detrimental to the Group, as the
directors believe that this could be remcdied. However. if the Group fails 1o remedy any loss of, or does not maintain, any
licence or accreditation, this wiil have a marerial adverse effect on the business of the Group The Group has internal
processes {n place to ensure that its licences and accreditations are maintained
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Climate risk
The board is mindful of climate risk and will continue to evaluate what potential implications the changing climate may

have on both the business activities of the Group and its clients.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Companies (Miscellancous Reporting) Regulations require large companies to publish a statement describing how
the directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172 (1) () to (£ of the Companies Act 2006. These sections
require directors to act in a way most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of its stakeholders and
with regard to the following matrers.

The likely consequences of any decision in the long term

The board receives an annual business plan from the managing director of each subsidiary company, which forms
the basis of the Group's strategic plan. The board requires that the plans include financial forecasts, KPls, marketing
strategy and an analysis of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats. Subsidiary directors, via the Group's
operational board of which they are members, consider the implications of their own plans in the context of what
others within the Group are intending to do and the opportunities for synergies are explored. Any proposed actions
that may adversety affect another subsidiary are flagged at operational board level and are resolved. Subsidiary directors
are challenged on the content of their plans and the assumptions they have made, to ensure that the plans are realistic
and achievable. Once agreed by the board, this plan, at Group and subsidiary level, is used as the benchmark against

which to assess performance.

‘The interests of the Group’s employees

As the Group is mainly involved in the supply of services, the board considers its staff to be the greatest asset and the
interests of employees are taken into consideration in all decisions made. Each subsidiary company within the Group
has in place the necessary structures to ensure effective communication with its employees. The subsidiary directors
mect once a quarter and retevant information is shared with employees via team meetings held at subsidiary level. The
views of employees are heard in a similar fashion, initialty at team meetings, and escalated to the operational board and
the main board if appropriate. Each subsidiary has its own bonus scheme, based on results for the financial year and/or
tailor-made targets. There is an annual budget for staff training in recognition that the performance of the Group can be

improved by the development of its employees.

The Group is committed to equality of employment and its policies reflect a disregard of factors such as disability in the
selection and development of employees. A review has been conducted to identify any genderrelated pay anomalies

across the Group and found there to be ne such anomalies.

The need to fosier the Group’s business relationships with suppliers, customers, and others

The Group seeks to treat suppliers fairly and adhere to contractuat payment terms. The Group works with its suppliers
to help drive change through innovation, promoting new ideas and ways of working. The Group has zero-tolerance to
moderg slavery and is committed to acting ethically and with integrity in all business dealings and relationships. The
Group's policy for Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking contains systems and controls to ensure that these activities
are not taking place anywhere in the subsidiaries or throughout the Group’s supply chains and can be viewed on our

website (www.phsc.plc.uk).

The Group also has zero-wierance with regards to bribery, made explicit through its Anti-Bribery and Cerruption
Policy. This covers the acceptance of gifts and hospitality and any form of unethical inducement or payment including
facilitation payments and “kickbacks”. The policy sets out the responsibilities of directors, employees and contractors
and details the procedures in place to prevent bribery and corruption, This policy is also available on our website.

10
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Each suhsidiary is focussed on its customers. Communication takes many forms and is structured according 1o how
enach subsidiary interacts with its client base. Channels of communication inchude gquarterly newsleters in hard copy
and/or sent electronically, customer roadshows, interaction via various social media platforms (Twitter, LinkedIn and

Facebook) and regular chient meetings. An ongoing dialogue is held electrenically, with most clients subscribing t©
email updates that are sent out periodically.

Stephen King is the principal contact between the Company and its investors, with whom he maintains a regwar
dialogue. The Company is committed to listening to and communicating openly with its shareholders to £nsure that
its business model and performance are understood. Regular anpouncements are made to the market and the AGM
provides a forum for information dissemination, discussion and feedback.

The impact of the Group’s operations on the community and the environment

The board’s intention is to behave responstbly and ensure that management operates the business in 2 responsible
manner, complying with high standards of business conduct and good governance. The Group has a loag tradition
of supporting local causes through sponsorship and comgnunity inveivement, details of which can be found on our
website. The directors are aware of the impact of the Group's business on the environment but belicve this to be
minimal due 1o the nature of its opentions.

GOING CONCERN

Company law requires the directors to consider the appropriateness of the going concern basis when preparing the
financial statements, Cash reserves ended the year at a higher leve! than in 2021.22. The board is sausfied that such
reserves, along with 1he Group's cash-generative trading position and (unused) credir facility will ensure that there are
sufficient resources to continue in operationsi existence for the foresecabie future. The cost of the proposed enhanced
final dividend is factored into the board’s calcuiations in this regard. The directors therefore continue 10 adopt the geing
concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

©m behelf of the board. 1 must once again thank all pur sharebolders, employess and other stakeholders for continuing
t3 place their trust in us and for enabling 2022-23 to be 4 successhul year

On behalf of the board

£ ’
LAY

i
Stephen King
Group Chief Executive

7 August 2023
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PHSC plc

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

The direcrors present their report with the audited financial statements of PHSC plc (Company and Group) for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

DIRECIORS

The directors who held office during the year under review and up to the date of approval of the financial statements
weTe:

SA King

M G Coote

G N Webh MBE

L E Young

DIVIDENDS

A total dividend of 1.0p per ordinary share (£124,020) was paid in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022, half was
paid in January 2022 and the balance in October 2022. An interim dividend of 0.3p in respect of the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 was paid in February 2023 and, subject to shareholder approval at the AGM. an enhanced final
dividend of 1p will be paid on 13 October 2023 to sharcholders on the register of members at the close of business on

29 Septcmber 2023,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s operations exposc it to a variety of financial risks which are outlined in note 1 to the financial statements

on pages 35 and 36.

SHARE CAPITAL
The issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report is 11,847,019 ordinary shares of 10p each. The
Company holds no ordinary shares in treasury.

DATA PROTECTION
The Company has a policy to meet the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR} and this has

been issued across the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOILDINGS
As at 7 August 2023, the following persons had notified the Company of an intérest of 3% or more of its issued share

capital,

No. of ordinary shares % of issued share capital

Name )
SA King 2,561,848 21.62
N € Coote 2,530,256 21.36
Unicorn Asset Management Limited and Unicorn AIM VCT I plc 1,249,057 10,54

455,000 3.84

James Faulkner

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

So far as each of the directors is aware at the time this report is approved:

« there i5 no refevant audit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware, and

+ the directors have taken alf steps thar they oughr to have taken to make themsclves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information,

12
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

This year's AGM will be held at 10.00 a.m. on Thursday 28 September 2023 at The Old Church, 3t Rochester
Road, Aylesford, Kent ME20 7PR. The notice of meeting is set out on pages 64 to 66 of this document and a form of
proxy is included on page 67.

Details of the business © be considered at the meeting are given below

Report and accounts (Resolution 1)

[t is a requirement of company law that the annual report and accounts are laid before shareholders in a general mecting.

Dividend (Resclution 2)

As noted above, the directors recommend a final dividend of 1p per share. If approved, the final dividend wili be patd
on 13 October 2023 to shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on 29 September 2023.

Re-election of director (Resolution 3)

Under the Company’s articles of association, Graham Webb will retire by rotation and offers himself for re-clection.

Re-appointment of auditor (Resolution 4)

A resolution for the re-appoinument of Crowe UK. LLP as the Company’s auditor will be put to the AGM together with
the usual practice of authorising the directors to determine the auditor’s fecs.

Authority of directors to allot shares (Resolutions 5 and 6)

By law, directors arc not permitted to allot new shares {or to grant rights over shares) unless they arc authorised to do
so by shareholders. In addition, directors require specific authority from sharcholders before allotting new shares (or
granting rights over shares) for cash without first offering them to existing sharcholders in proportion to their holdings.

Resolution 3 gives the directors the necessary authority umtii the earlier of next year’s AGM or 28 December 2024, 1o
allot securities up to an aggregate nomindl amount of £394 900 being cquivalent to approximately one third of the
Company'’s issued share capital as at 7 August 2023

Resolution 6 empowers the directors. until the earlier of next vear's AGM or 28 December 2024, to aliot such securities
for cash otherwise than on a pro-rata basis to cxisting shareholders, up to an aggregate nominal amount of £236,940
being equivalent to approximately 20 per cent. of the Company’s issued share capitat as at 7 August 2023, it is intended
to renew this authority and power at each AGM.

Authority for the Company to purchase its own shares (Resolution 7)

Resolution 7 authorises the Company. until the earlier of next year’s AGM or 28 December 2024 to purchase in the
market up to a maximum of 1,777,053 ordinary shares (equivalent to approximately 15 per cent. of the issued sharc
capital of the Company as at 7 August 2023} for cancellation at a minimum price of 10 pence per share and a maximum
price per share of an amount equat to 1035 per cent. of the average of the middie market quotations for an ordinary
share (as derived from the London Stock Exchange) for the five business days immediately before the date of purchase.

The Companv may hold any repurchased shares in treasury, instead of cancelling them immediately. If the Company
buys back its own shares and holds them in treasury it may then desl with some or all of them in several ways. It
may seil them for cash; transfer them under the provisions of an emplovee share scheme; cancel them: or continue to
hold them in treasury. Holding shares in treasury in this way will allow the Company to reissue them quickly and cost
effectively, giving increased flexibility o the management of igs capital base. Dividends arc not paid on shares held in
treasury, nor do they carry voting rights while they remain there. The directors intend to decide at the time of any
further share buybacks, whether to cancel the shares immediately or to hold them in treasury. depending on what
would best promote the success of the Company at the time. The Companyv currently holds no ordinary shares in

treasury
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The propesal should not be taken as an indication thar the Coinpany will purchase shares at any particular price or
indeed at all, and the directors will only consider making further purchases if they believe that such purchases would
result in an increase in earnings per share and are in the best interests of shareholders.

Voting

A form of proxy is included at the end of this document for use at the AGM. Please complete, sign and return it as soon
as possible in accordance wirh the instructions on it, whether or not you intend to attend the AGM. Returning a form of
proxy will not preven: you from attending the meeting and voting in person if you so wish. A form of proxy should be
returned so that it is received not less than 48 hours (excluding non-working days) before the time of the AGM.

The directors consider thai all the resolutions to be put to the meeting are in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The directors will be voting in favour of them and unanimously rccommend that you do so

as well

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Based on the results for 2022-23, the board is confident that the Group can recmain profitable and cash-generative

throughout the current financial ycar.

On behalf of the board

==

SGH Company Secrétaries Limited
Secreiary

7 August 2023
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
Jfor the year evided 31 March 2023

The directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report, the directors’ report and the Group and parent Company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial

vear. Under that law the directors have elected 10 prepare the consclidated financial statements and Company 4ccounts
in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards,

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to;

»  selecr suitable accounting pobcies and then apply them consistently;
= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state wherher applicable accounting standards have been folliowed, subject 1o any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless i is inappropriate to presume that the Company
will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recacds that are sufficient to show and cxplain the
Company and Group's wransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and Group and enable them {0 ensure that the financial statements comply with the Cotnpanies A
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and Group and heace for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and oiher irregularities.

They are further responsibie for ensuring that the strategic report, the report of the directors and other information
included in the annual report and financial starements is prepared in acrordance with applicable law and reguiations
in the UK.

The maintenance and integrity of the PHSC pic website is the responsibility of the direciors; the work carried ow by the
auditor does not invoive the consideration of these matters and, accordingly. the auditor accepts no responsibility for
any changes that may have occurred in the accounts since they were initially presenied on the website.

Legislation in the UK governing the preparagion and dissemination of the accounts and the other information included
in annuai repores may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

On behalf of the board

Stephen King
Group Chigf Fxgciitive

7 Augusi 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Dear Sharcholder,

The board has an obligation to ensure that good standards of corporate governance are embraced throughout the
Company and its subsidiarics (together, the “Group™). As a board, we set clear expectations concerning the Group's
culture, values and behaviours. Our values are (¢ ensure our customers receive quality service and support, our
customers, staff and other stakeholders are treated fairly and that we develop our staff so that they can provide the
most innovative and effective solutions. We firmly believe that by encouraging the right way of thinking and behaving
across all our people, our corporate governance cufture is ceinforced, enabling us to drive our premiuwm, customer-
focusscd, people-led stiategy and deliver value for our stakehoiders.

It is the board’s job to ensure that the Group is managed for the fong-term benefit of all shareholders, with effective and
efficient decision-making. Corporate governance is an important part of that job, reducing risk and adding value 0 our

business.

The below statement scts out ow the Group complies with the 10 principles of the 2018 Quoted Companies alliance

Corporate Governance Code (the "QCA Code™).

Stephen King
Chatr

ESTABLISHING STRATEGY AND BUSINESS MODEL
The Group is dedicated to being a leading provider of health, safety, hygiene and environmental consultancy scrvices

and security solutions to the public and private sectors.

The board seis the Group's strategy and monitors its impiementation through management and financial performance
reviews. It also seeks to ensure that adequate resources are available to implement the Group’s strategy in a timely
manner. The Group has set out a strategic plan to promote long-term value creation for shareholders and will update all

shareholders on this in the annual report each year,

The board meets on 2 regular basis to discuss the strategic direction of the Group and any significant change will be
highlighted promptly.

Further information on the Group’s strategy, performance and outlook can be found within the strategic report on pages

3to11l.

UNDERSTANDING AND MEETING SHAREHOLDER NEEDS AND EXPECTATIONS

The Group remains committed to listening to, and communicating openly with, its shareholders to ensure that its
strategy, business model and performance are clearly understood. The AGM is a forum for sharehoiders to engage in
diatogue with the board. The results of voting at the AGM will be published via a regulatory information service and on

the Group’s website.

Stephen King is the principal contact between PHSC plc and its shareholders, with whom he maintains a regular
dialogue. The views of sharecholders are communicated to the whole board. The Group’s progress on achieving its key

targets is regularly communicated to investors through its announcernenis {0 the market.

The Group also uses other professional advisers such as a nomad, broker, auditor and company secretary who provide

advice and recommendations on shareholder communication.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

far the year ended 31 March 2023

CONSIDERING STAKEHOLDER AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The beard rccognises its responsibilities to stakcholders including staff, supplicrs, customers and the communitics
within which it operates. The heads of each of its operating subsidiaries provide regular feedback to the executive
directors, whe then ensure that the board as a whole is informed of any major developments.

The Group’s initiatives in relation to its employees are detailed in the section 172 statement on page 10

EMBEDDING EFFECTIVE RISK MANAGEMENT

The board rcgularly reviews the risks facing the business as outlined on pages 8 to 10 and the internal controis in
place to address these risks. Each operating subsidiary has reviewed its business and identified the key risks which it
faces. Asatesult, plans have been putin place to deal with various contingencies which might arise. Accepting that no
systems of control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, the directors believe that the
established systems for internal control within the Group are appropriate for the business

The Group's operations ¢xpose it to a variety of financial risks which are outlined in note 1 to the financial statements
on pages 39 and 36.

MAINTAINING A BALANCED AND WELL-FUNCITIONING BOARD, WITH APPROPRIATE SKILLIS AND
CAPABILITIES

It is the role of the board to ensure that the Group is managed for the longterm benefit of all sharcholders and
other stakeholders with effective and efficient decision-making Good corporate governance 15 an important
contriburor, reducing risk and adding value to PHSC ple. ‘The board will continue to meniter the governance framework
of the Group

The board comprises four directors, of which two are executive and rwo are non-executive. reflecting a biend of different
experience and backgrounds. The chair of the board is Stephen King, who is also the group chief executive. He oversees
the financial position of the Group on a day-to-day basis with assistance from the group accountant. Nicola Coote is
the deputy group chicf cxecutive, and she lecads on the Group's marketing initiatives and oversees PHSCL. Graham
Webb and Lorraine Young are the non-cxecutive directors, whom the board considers to be independent based on their
arms-length oversight of the Group’s governance. Both have extensive extcrnal experience and arc able 1© use this
together with their personal qualities to ensure objectivity. PHSC plc is 4 small company and the value from an intimate
knowledge and understanding of the Group's history is fundamental to the ability to give best advice and to best protect
stakeholders’ interests.

The board sets direction for the Group and has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decision, including Group
strategy, approval of major capital expenditure, approval of the annual and interim results, annual budgets, dividend
policy and board structure The board monitors the exposure to key business risks and reviews the strategic direction
of all trading subsidiaries. their annual budgets. their performance in relation to those budgeis and their capital
cxpenditure. The board delegates day-to-day responsibility for managing the business (o the executive directors and ihe
operational board.

The QCA Code rccommends that the chair and chief executive shoukd not be the same person. Currendy Stephen
King, the group chief executive, is also the Group's chair. As the board is comprised of only four members. two of whom
are independent nonexecutive directors, the directars are of the view that there is no need to split these roles. For the
same reason the board has not appointed a senior independent director.

Graham Webb has served on the board for 20 years The board is of the view that he retains his independent judgement
and continues to make a valuable coniribution 1o the board. Reguiar board meetings are held (a minimum of four per
vear) and other meetings are scheduled as required  Brief biographical details of the directors are set out below.
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Stephen King

Group Chief Executive and Chair

Stephen King co-founded PHSCL in 1990 with Nicola Coote. He has over 35 ycars' experience in health and safecy
management, having qualified in 1985. He left a role as personnel manager at Delta Enfield Cables Ltd in 1986, moving
to the News International printing facility at Wapping, London. At News International, he was occupational health
and safery manager, in charge of a tcam of practitioners responsible for the well-being of over 4,000 staff. In 1990, he
joined Reuters plc as UK health and safety manager. He left employment with Reuters ple in 1992 and continued to
service their health and safety requirements through PHSCL. He has acted as secretary of the southeast branch of the
Institution of Occupational Safety and Health (IOSH) and served 4 two-year term as chair of the London Occupational
Health and Safety Group by whom he was granted honorary life membership. He chaired the annual Tolley Health and
Safety Conference for three successive years and has presented papers at several conferences. He chaired the Kent
Health and Safety Consultants Forum, a group set up by the Health and Safety Executive with a remit of improving the
standard of advice given by all independent safety consultants in the county, for the whole of its six-year existence. He
is immediate past chair of Kent Executive Club. a long-cstablished group that promotes links betwecn business people
across the county. Efis other activities include serving as a trustec for a charity operating a group of care homes and as

chair of trustees for a local animal sanctuary.

Nicola Coote

Deputy Group Chief Exzscutive and Deputy Chair

Nicola Coote co-founded PHSCL in 1990 with Stephen King, after working with him in cccupational safety and health
at both News International and Reuters ple. Nicola is Deputy CEO which includes heading the marketing fuaction of
PHSC plc. Nicola has served as secretary of the southeast branch of IOSH and has chaired the annual Tolley Health and
Safety Conference. She continues to write and update editorial material for their publication Tolley’s Health & Safety at
Work Handbook and has acted as authot, consultant editor or contributor to more than 30 titles produced by publishers
such as Croner. She was the first female Fellow of IOSH in the south of England and continues to support the institution
by, inter alia, sitting on the panel for applicants applying for Chartered Membership and Chartered Fellowship
status. She is also a Registered Expert Witness and works on both criminal and civil cases. In June 2022, Nicola was
appointed a non-executive director of Thera Trust, a charity supporting adults with learning difficulties.

Graham Webb MBE

Nown-Executive Director

Graham Webb was appointed a non-executive director of PHSC plc in June 2003. He served as a Kent Ambassador
for 12 years, appointed by Kent County Council. Prior to its sale, Graham was chair in the UK for many years of the
international hair and beauty group that bears his name. The US company was sold to Wella and subsequently acquired
by Procter & Gamble for whom Graham served in North America as their goodwill ambassador for 6 years. He was chair
of the lnstitute of Directors, Kent branch, from 1996 to 1999 and was appointed as 2 member of the Contfederation of
British Industry Scuth Eastern Regional Council {1994 to 2000). Graham was chair of the Kent Business Awards for
9 years and chair of the Kent Exccllence in Business Awards for 3 years. His charitable activities included being an
ambassador for the Kent Association for Spina Bifida and Hydrocephalus. As chair of the Kent and Medway NSPCC Full
Stop Appeal, Graham helped raisc over £460,000. In the 2005 New Year Honours list, Graham was awarded an MBE for
his services to business and charity in Kent. Graham is chair of the remuneration committee and is a member of the

audit committee.

Lorraine Young

Non-Executive Director

Lorraine Young was appeinted a non-executive director of PHSC plc in April 2016. She runs a board advisory and
consultancy practice, as well as being an accredited mediator, and serves on the advisory board of Indigo Independent
Governance. She is a former non-executive director of City of London Group pic, an AIM guoted company in the
financial services sector where she chaired the remuneration committee. Lorraine has held senior governance roles at
several blue-chip companies, including Standard Chartered plc and Brambles Industries ple. She ran her own company
secretarial and corporate governance advisory practice for 13 years, which in 2016 she merged with the company
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secretarial team at a UK top 50 law firm, where she was a partner. Lorraine is on the Court of the Worshipful Company
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators being one of the modern livery companies, where she chairs the Finance &
General Purposes Commitice. She is also a past president and fellow of the Chartered Governance [nstitute. Lotraine is
chair of the audit committee and is a member of the remuneration committee.

MAINTAINING GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES AND PROCESSES
The board

[n addition to the information given under the previous principle, the chair is responsible for the leadership of the board
and is pivoral to fostering a culture that adopts good corperate governance. The chair, together with the rest of the
board sets direction for the Group through a formal schedule of martters reserved for its decision as set out on page 17

independence of directors

At present. the Group has two independent non-executive directors, Graham Webl MBE and Lorraine Young.

Time commitments

The non-executive directors are expected to commit sufficient time to fulfil their duties in that role Both of the
executive directors work full-time. '

Altendance al meetings

Board Audit Remuneration
Stephen King® 3/5 2/2 0/1
Nicola Coote* 5/5 2/2 0/1
Graham Webb 4/3 2/2 /1
Lorraine Young 5/5 2/2 /1

' Stephen King und Nicola Coote are qot members of the audit and remuneranon committee. though they are both invited to attend commirtiee meetings
as and when required Thev do oot participate in discussions concerning their own remuneration

Commiilees

The board has delegated certain matters to committees. There is an audit commirtee and a remuneration committee. The
terms of reference of these committees were reviewed during the year and are available on reciuest. There is no separate
nominations committec and the board as a whole deals with any martters that would normaily be within the remit
of such a committee. For example, the board reviews succession planning at senior levels within the Group at least
annually.

Aundit commiltiee

The audit committee comprises Lorraine Young (chair) and Graham Webb.

There is an annual audit planning mecting between the externai auditor and the committee chair as well as a formal
meeting with the auditor and the committee at the time of the final results. ISA (UK) 315 (Revised) applied this year
and was discussed at some length during the audit planning meeting The key risk areas identificd by the auditors
and considered by the audit committee as part of the year-end process, were stock, the impairment of goodwill and
investrnenis. revenue recognition and the override of controls by management {n addition to these issues. the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, the recoverability of trade receivables. IT systems and controls, taxation and
disclosures within the Annual Report were discussed. There were no changes in accounting standards or disclosure
requirements this ycar which the committee needed to consider

The committee also regularly reviews internal controls and risk management, including the risk registcr. Accepting that
no systems of contirol can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or ioss, the directors belicve that
the established systems for internal control within the Group are appropriate to the business. The audir committee
reviews annually whether the Group needs to have an internal audit function and does not consider this to be necessary
at present.
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The committee does consider the continuing independence of the external audizor and notes the level of non-audirt fees
to ensure they remain at an acceptable level. The current audit partner has been in his role for five years and therefore
he will rotate off the audit after this year’s AGM. The comrmuittee has agreed his replacement.

Remuneration commitiee

The remuneration commitiee comprises Graham Webb (chair) and Lorraine Young. The committee has written terms
of reference and considers all aspects of the remuneration of the executive directors and other senior executives. The
members of the committee maintain knowledge and awarcness of the latest regulatory requirements and current
market practice. As in prior years, any payments (o senior executives under the Group bonus plan are approved by
the committee. It also receives representations on any proposed general pay increases across Group subsidiaries and is

responsible for approving those.

Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the exccutive directors was as follows:

Year ended 31.3.23

Short-term employee benefits Post Year

Waiver/ Pension cmployment ended

voluntary salary benefits 31322

Salary Bonus reduction sacrifice Benefits Pension Total Total

& & £ & £ £ . & S

SA King . 97,392 3,674 (37,5000 (3,600) 2,844 6,415 69,225 69.630
N C Coote 79,833 3,074 - {10,000) 2,483 13,492 89,482 86,433

The benefits relaie to health insurance. Stephen King's bonus was added to salary whereas Nicola Coote opted to take

hers as a pension Ccontribution.

The fees of the non-executive directors were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31.5.23 31.322

s B

G N'Webb 16,095 15,131
L E Young 16,095 15,131

Nominations commitice
The board has not set up a separate nominations commitiee. Any marters which would normally be dealt with by such

a committee will be considered by the whole board.

EVALUATING BOARD PERFORMANCE
The beard has a mix of experience, skills and personal qualities that help deliver the strategy of the Group. The board
will ensure that between them, the dircetors have the necessary up-to-date expericnce, skills and capabilities to deliver

the Group’s strategy,

PROMOTING ETHICAL VALUES AND BEHAVIOURS

The Group has a corporate culture that is based on ethical values and behaviours. [t will maintain a quality system
appropriate to the standards required for a company of its size. The board communicates regularty with staff through
meetings and other forms of internal communication. Information is cascaded to staff at subsidiaries via operational
board meetings (which are held at least quarterly). The head of each subsidiary attends these meetings with the
exccutive directors. The non-executive directors attend these mectings from time to time to keep up to date with

performance and deveiopments throughout the business.
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COMMUNICATING WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER RELEVANT STAKEHOLDERS

The Group makes available on its website historical annual reports, notices of meetings and other publications over the
last five years
On behalf of the board

- -

&

SGH Company Secretaries Limited
Secretary
7 August 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOILDERS
OF PHSC PLC

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

OPINION
We have audited the financial statements of PHSC plc (parent Company) and its subsidiaries (Group) for the year ended
31 March 2023, which comprise:

* the Group and Parent Company statements of financial pesition as at 31 March 2023;

* the Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023,

»  the Group and parent Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended:
* the Group and parent Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

* the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is applicable law
and UK adopted international accounting standards and, as regards the parent Company financial statements, as applicd
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our apinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company’s affairs as
at 31 March 2023 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international

accounting standards;

* the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I5SAs (UK)} and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requircments that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed
entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our cvaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group
and parent’s company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included the following:

»  We obtained and reviewed management’s trading budgets and cash flow forecasts. In addition to the review of
arithmetical accuracy, we also discussed the key assumptions with management and ensured they are in line with
expectations based on industry averages and analysis of prior year trends and performance. The trading budget and
cash flow forecast show the Group as being profitable and cash gencrative throughout the forecast period. Our
assessment included undertaking sensitivity analysis on these forecasts and considered the feasibility of resuits in

light of past losses and recent cconomic conditions.
+ Wt reviewed the board minutes and discussed with management any matters not documented in the minutes.

* We enquired with management whether there are any significant subsequent events that may impact on the Group's

goinig concern status.
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In addition to the above we noted that the Group has significant cash reserves at 31 March 2023 and a long standing
agreed additional bank facility available which has never been used.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions, that individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's or parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of ar least twelve months from when the financiai statements are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the direciors with respect to going concern are described in the refevant
sections of this report.

OVERVIEW OF OUR AUDIT APPROACH

Materiality

In planning and performing our audit we applied the concept of materiality. An item is considered material if it could
reasonably be expected to change the cconomic decisions of a user of the financial statements. We used the concept of
materiality to both focus our testing and to evaluate the impact of misstatements identified.

Based on our professional judgement, we dercrmined overall materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole to
be £21,000 (2022:£16,000), based on a balance of 0.75% of turnover and 5% of normalised profit before tax. Company
materiality for the financial statements was determined to be £8.000 (2022 £10,000) based on 0.75% of turnover

We use a different level of materiality (performance materality) to determine the extent of our testing for the audit of
the financial statements. Performance materiality is set based on overall audit materiality as adjusted for the judgements
made about entity risk and cur evaluation of the specific risk for cach audit area. Group performance materialicy was
sct at 70% (2022: 56%) of overall materiality, which equates to £14,700 (2022: £8,960). We applied this percentage in
our determination of performance materiality based on a medium level risk profile overall.

Where high specific risk has been {dentified or where considered appropriate, in such arcas as directors' remuneration
or related parties, performance materiality was reduced to 48% (2022: 48%) of overall materiality

We agreed with the audit committee to report all identified errors in excess of £2,100 (2022: £2,500). Errors below
thar threshold would also be reporied to it if, in our opinion as auditor, disclosure was required on qualitative grounds.

OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

The audit scope was established during the planning stage and was based around the key matters set out below

All subsidiaries were considered significant components and a full scope audit was undertaken on each of these. The
audit approach for each component was consistent with the overall scope of the zudit.

The parent and subsidiaries werc all audited by Crowe and no component auditors were used.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial starements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These martters included those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy. the allocation of resources in the audit: and directing the cfforts of the engagement team. These
matiers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statcments as & whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We considered going concern to be a key audit matter. Qur observations on this area ate set out in the Conclusions
relating o Going Concern section of the audit report
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identified by our audit.

Key audit matter

How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

As at 31 March 2023, the
Group has goodwill balances
totalling £2,235,000 allocated
between the Group's Cash
Generating Units (CGUs)

As explained in note 6 to

the financial statements,

the Directors are required

to annuaily test goodwill

for impairment, 4 process
that is complex and highly
judgemental. We therefore
idéntified the impairment of
goodwiil as a significant risk.

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to;

considering management’s asscssment of the existence of any impairment
indicators.

obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the impairment review
process and generation of cash flow forecasts.

obtaining and checking the mechanical accuracy of management's
impairment model.

considering management’s assessment of CGUs, the net assets of cach CGU
and whether impairment testing is being conducted for all relevant CGUs.
challenging and testing the assumptions underlying the impairment models
for value in use calculations, in particular maintainable trading levels,
growth rates and discount rates (utilising a valuation specialist).

testing the accuracy of management’s forecasting through a comparison of
budget to actual data and historical variance trends.

considering the accounting policy for compliance with IAS 36 and the
application by the Group in accordance with the stated policy.

The parent company holds
investments in its subsidiaries
totailing £2,312,278. As

this amount is higher

than the year-end market
capitalisation for the Group.
this was considered to be an
indication of impairment and
s0 management performed

a review to identify if any
impairment was required.
This involved preparation of
value in use forecasts, which
require mranagement to make
a number of estimates and
judgements and we therefore
consider this to be a key audit
matter

Qur audit work included, but was not restricted to:

considering management's assessment of the existence of any impairment
indicators.

obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the impairment review
process and generation of cash flow forecasts.

obtaining and checking the mechanical accuracy of management's
impairment model.

considering management’s assessment of CGUs, the net assets of cach CGU
and whether impairment testing is being conducted for all relevant CGUs.
chillenging and testing the assumptions underlying the impairment models
for value in use calculations, in particular maintainabie trading levels,
growth rates and discount rates (utilising a valuation specialist).

testing the accuracy of management’s forecasting through a comparison of
budget to actual data and historical variance trends.

considering the accounting policy for compliance with IAS 36 and the
application by the Group in accordance with the stated policy,

Qur audit procedures in refation to these matters were designed in the context of our audit opinion as a whole. They

were not designed to enabte us to express an opinion on these matters individually and we express no such opinion.

OYHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsibic for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion on the financial
staterments does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information: and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
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apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:

* the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ repert for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements: and

+ the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with appiicable legal requirements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TG REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Company and their environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors report.

We have nothing to reporf in respect of the following matters where the Companics Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our optnion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR I'HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the direcrors’ responsibilitics statement set out on page 15, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and parent Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting uniess the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance abour whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or ervor, and o issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance ts a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if. individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

EXTENT TO WHICH THE AUDIT IS5 CAPABLE OF DETECTING IRREGUIARITIES, INCLUDING FRAUD

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We identified and assessed
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements from irregularitics, whether due te fraud or ecror, and
discussed these between our audit team members. We then designed and performed audit procedures responsive to
thosc risks, including obtaining audit evidence sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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We obtained 2n understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks within which the Group opcrates, focusing
on thosc laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The laws and regulations we considered in this context were the Companies Act 2006 and
Taxation legisiation.

We identified the greasest risk of material impact on the financial statements from irreguiaritics, including frand, to be
the override of controls by management and the recognition of revenue. Qur audit procedures to respond 1o these risks
inchuded:

*  epquiry of management about the Group's policies, procedures and related coatrofs regarding compliance with
kaws and regulations and if there are any known instances of non-complidnce,;

*  examining suppotiing documents for all material balances, transactions and disclosures;
> review of the board mecting minutes,
* enquiry of management and review and inspection of relevant correspondence with any legal firms;

+  evaluation of the selection and application of accounting policies refated to subjective measurements and complex

transactions; -

= detailed testing of a sample of sales made during the year and around the year end and agreeing these through to
invoices and receipts;

- testing the appropriateness of a sample of significant journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements; und

+  review of accounting estimates for biases.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatemnents in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance
with auditing standards, We are not responsible for preventng non-compliance and cannot be expected 1o detect non-
compliance with ail laws and regatations.

A further description of our respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at www.fre.org.uk/anditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, 2s a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit waork has been undertaken se that we might state to the Company's members thosc
matters we are required (0 state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by faw, we do not accept of assume responsibility to anyvone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

R o R~ il

Mark Anderson

(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behaif of
Crowe UK, LILP
Statutory Auditor
Maidstone

7 August 2023
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Registered number: 4121793

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as ar 31 March 2023

31.3.23 31.3.22
Note £ £
Mon-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment s 408,490 490,138
Goodwill 6 2,235,045 2,233,045
Defoerred tax asset i4 11,554 15,391
2,715,089  2.740.774
Current Assets
Stock 8 200,169 185,685
Trade and other receivables 7 674,372 725.5378
Cash and cash equivalents 9 749,627 649,363
1,624,168 1,561,426
Total Assets 4,339,257 4,302,200
Current Liabilides
Trade and other payabies 11 531,422 617,077
Right of use {ease Labilities i3 25,137 30,0632
CUrrent corporation tax payable 56,919 55,112
513,478 702,821
Non-Current Liabilities
Right of use lewse lisbilities 13 25,414 24,184
Deferred tax Habilities 14 62,223 61,842
87,637 86,026
Total Liabilities 701,115 788,847
Aot Assess 3,638,342 3,513,353
Capital and reserves atiributable to equity holders of the Group
Called up share capital 10 1,184,764 1,467,726
Share premivum account 144] 1,916,017 1,916,017
Capital redemption reserve 426,550 143,628
Merger relief reserve 133,836 133 B34
Treasury shares - (644,738
Retained earnings (23,065} 494 884
3,638,142 3,513,333

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7 August 2023, and were

signied on its behalf by:

S AKing Director

The wccounting policles and sotes on pages 31 to 50 form part of these finapciai stulemens,
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31.3.23 31322
Note & 3
Continuing operations:
Revenue 27 3,437,624 3,570,626
Cost of salcs 15 (1,612,543) (1,938,870)
Gross profit 1,825,081 1,631,756
Administrative expenses (s (1,524,829) (1,446.050)
Goodwill impairment 6 - (793.,418)
Government grants 16 - 29,527
Other income 17 3,000 -
Profit/(loss) (rom operations 303,252 (578,186)
Finance income 20 1,346 388
Profit/(loss)before taxation 304,598 (377.798)
Corporation tax cxpense 21 (61,339) (53,205}
Profit/(loss) for the year after tax attributable to owners of the parent 243,259 (631,003}
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to0 owners of the parent 243,259 (631,003)
22 2.05p (4.76)p

Basic earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations {(p)}

The accounting policies and notes on pages 31 to 50 form part of these financial slatenents.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Jor the year erndded 31 March 2023

Balance at 1 Aprii 2022
Profit for year aturiburable to
equity holders

Dividends

Cancellation of own shares

Balance at 31 March 2023

Balance at 1| April 2021
Loss for year atributabie to
cquity holders

Dividends

Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 March 2022

Merger Capital
Share Share Relief Redemption Treasury Retained

Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Shares Earnings Total
£ £ 5 & & Ed Ed
1,467,726 1,916,017 133,836 143,628 (G4 1,738) 496,884 3,513,333
- - - - 243,239 243,259

_ _ _ - - (118,470 (118.470)
(283,022 283 022 644,738 (644,738 -
1,184,704 1,916,017 133,836 426,650 - (23,065) 3,638,142
1,467,720 1,916,017 153856 143,628 - 1.258.092 1919299

- - - - (631,003) (631003

- - - - {130,203) 130,203

- - - (644,738) - (644,738)
1.467.726 1.916,017 133,836 143,628 (641,738) 496,884 3,513,333

The accounting policics and notes on pages 31 to 30 form part of these financial statements.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

31.3.23 31.3 22
Note & i
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash generated from operations I 318,153 313,530
Tax paid (55,114) (89,213)
Net cash generated from operating activities 263,039 224,317
Cash flows uscd in investing activitics
Burchase of property. plant and equipment (41,386) 22,117
Proceeds from disposal of fixed asse(s - 140
Interest received 1,346 338
Net cash used in investing activities (40,040) (21,589
Cash flows used in financing activities
Payment of lease Habilities (4,26%) (13,90%)
Purchase of own shares - (644.738)
Dividends paid to shareholders (118,470) (130,205)
Net cash used in financing activities (122,733) (790,848
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 100,264 (388,120)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 649,363 ,237,483
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 749,627 649,363
All changes in liabilities arising from financing relate entirely to cash movements.
NOTES TO THE GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Sor the year ended 31 March 2023
31.3.23 30522
5 E
L. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit/(loss) from operations 303,252 {(377,798)
Depreciation charge 63,034 58,812
Goodwill impairment — 793,418
Loss on sale of fixed assets - 2,441
(Increase)/decrease in stock (14,484) 74,075
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 52,006 (136,250)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (83,653 98,832
318,153 313,530

Cash generated from operations
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

General information

PHSC plc is guoted on the AIM market operated by London Stock Exchange pic and is incorporaied in England and
Wales under the Companies Act 2006 The address of its registercd office is set out in the Company information
schedule at the front of this annual report. The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out
in the strategic report on pages 3 to 1! The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency. The figures shown in the financial statements are rounded to the nearest pound.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards
and under the historical cost convendon except as noted below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas invoiving a higher degree of judgement or compiexiry, or areas where assumprions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 2.

Company Law requires the directors 10 consider the appropriateness of the going concern basis when preparing the
financial statements. The directors confirm that they have considered a period up to 12 months from the date of signing
and any severe but plausible downside factors and that the going concern basis remains appropriate. [n accordance
with Financial Reporting Council guidance the directors have provided reasons for this opinion in the going concern
section of the stratégic report on page 11.

There are no standards that ate issued but not yer effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the
entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foresecable future transactions,

Basis of consolidation

The Gmub financial statements consolidate the financial statements of PHSC plc and all of its subsidiary undertakings
made up to 31 March 2023.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has contrel. Control is the power 1o govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to obrain benefits from its activities. The Group obtains and exercises control through voting
rights.

The acquisition of subsidiarics has been accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equiry instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent labilities assurned 4re measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition aver the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. Inter-company transactions (including unrealised gains/losses) and balances arc eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also climinated, unjess the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset ransferred. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount onty when it is probabile that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item» can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged o profit and loss in
the period in which they are incurred
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
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Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land, ar rates calculated to write off
the cost, less estimated residual value, of each assct aver the shorter of the expected useful life or lease term, as follows:

Property:

Freehold buildings - 2% on a straight line basis
Improvements to property - on a straight line basis (10% of cost if expected useful life is shorter than the
lease term)

Plant and equipment:
Fixtures and equipment - 25% on reducing balance basis
Motor vehicles - 25% on reducing balance basis

Material residual value estimates are updated as required. An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposal are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in profit and loss.

Leases
Al inception of a contract. the Group assesses whether a contract is. or contains, a iease. A contract is, or contains, 4
lease if the contract conveys the right to controf the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group asscsses whether:

+ The contract involves the use of identified assets; this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially ali the capacity of a physically distinct assct.

= The Group has the right to obtain substantially ail the economic benefits from use of the assets throughout the
period of use; and

+ The Group has the right to direct the usc of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the
use of the asset if the Group has the right to operate the asset.

all leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease lizbility except for:
= Leases of low value assets; and

»  Leases with a duration of twelve months or less.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present vakue of contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with
the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the fease unless (as is typically the case) this is not
readily determinable, in which case the entity's incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. The
effect of discounting is considered immaterial to the financial statements, so the values recorded represent the gross

undiscounted amounts

Right-ofuse assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease or over the remaining
economic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the lease term.

Intangible assets
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and interests and represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the nct asset values of the subsidiaries or interests acquired. Such goodwill is capitalised as an intangible

assct and is stated at cost less impairment losses.

Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

For the purposes of asscssing impairment, assets are grouped ai the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination on which the goodwill arose and represent the lowest level within the Group at

which management monitors the related cash flows.
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Goodwill, other individual assets, or cash-generating units that include goodwill are reviewed for impairment at feast
annually. All property, plant and equipment with a finite life are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not he recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asscts or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable ameount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to
sell, and value in use, based on an internal discounted cash flow cvaluation. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are
subscquently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previcusly recognised may no longer exist. Impairment
losses are charged to administrative expenses.

Stock

Stock is stated at the lower of cost and nct realisable value after making allowance for obsclete and slow-moving
stock. The value of stock is calculated on purchase cost on a firstin, first-out basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits. bank overdrafts, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readity convertible into known amounis of cash and are subject to an insignificar risk of changes
in value, :

Financial instruments

Trade reccivables and contract assets arc initially statcd ar the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the cffective intcrest method. The carrying amounts for accounts receivabie are net of allowances for
expected credit losses. The Group evaluated the expected credit losses on trade receivables by reviewing historical
data. adjusted for forward-looking factors to the debtors and the cconomic environment. Individual receivables are only
written off when management deems them not collectible.

Taxation

Current tax is the tax currently payable based on the taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences berween the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities and their
tax bases, except when, at the initial recognition of the asset or lability, there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit
or loss under a business combination. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been substantially
enacted by the statemcnt of financial position date, and that are expected to apply when the temporary difference
reverses.

Tax losses available to be carried forward, and other tax credits to the Group, are recognised is deferred tax assets, to
the extent that it is probablc that there will be future taxable profits against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recogniscd as a component of the tax expense in the statement of
comprehensive income, except where they rclate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity. in which case
the related deferred tax is also charged or credited directly 1o equity.

Provisions

These are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation, using

a pre-tax rate that reflects current marker assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increasc in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Tncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new sharcs or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. The proceeds of share issucs, received net of any
directly attributable transactions costs, are credited to share capital at nominal value and the excess credited to the share

premium account.

The capital redemption reserve zrose when the Company repurchased some of its own shares. At that point the nominal
value of those shares was transferred (o the capital redemption reserve.

The merger relicf reserve represents the premium of any shares issued in part consideration on acquisitions in accordance

with section 612 of The Companies Act 2006.

Retained earnings represent the accumulated profits and losses, less dividends since the Group was formed.

Employee benefits
The Group supports various personal pension arrangements and is auto-enrolment compliant. Payments are made to
individual defined contribution pension schemes. Agreed contributions are charged to the statement of comprehensive

income as they become payable.

Revenue recognition
Revenue consists of the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled for services provided in the ordinary

course of the Group's activities, excluding VAT and trade discounts.

Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

and significant payment terms

Revenue from services is recognised as the services are provided as
this is the point at which the performance obligations are fulfilled. In
respect of services invoiced in advance, amounts are deferred until

Revenue stream

Services: one-off
consultancy, iraining, health & safety
audits, editoriais and safety inspections
provision of the service.
Customer payment terms are generally 30 days from the date of invoice.

Services: health and safety
support, annual consultancy

Revenue is recognised evenly across the length of the contract as this
is considered the best estimate of the fulfilment of the performance

services, appointed safety adviser obligations.
services and certification services Customer payment terms are generally 30 days from the date of invoice.
Services: UK Responsible Person Service Revenue is apportioned across the year using pre-set percentages

reflecting the associated work load each month.

Supply and installation of security Revenue from installation and maintenance is recognised as these
equipment and maintenance of services are provided as this is the point at which the performance

equipment obligations are fulfilled.
Customer payment terms arc berween 30 and 60 days from the

date of invoice.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencics are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the date of the Group statement of financial position are reported
at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of

comprehensive income within the administrative expense heading.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk

The Group’s activities exposc it to a varicty of financial risks. The Group's overall risk managemen: programme
sceks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the board which evaluates and manages financial risks in close co-operation
with the managing directors of the subsidiary companies. The Group:

= regularly reviews credit cxiended to customers with appropriate aciion being taken to minimise the cost
of bad debrs,

» balances risk and return when assessing where to place cash surplus to the Group’s immediate
requirements, and

«  keeps open options to employ debt finance to cnsure that the Group has enough funds for continuing
operations and planned growth.

Market risk

The Group has interest-bearing asscis which are subject 1o a variable rate of interest. Accordingty, the Group
is only exposed to interest rate risk, which is not expected to have a significant impact on profit or ioss or
equity. Cash is deposited with a blue chip institution with regular monitoring of exposure and risk.

Credit risk

The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales
are made. No credit limits were exceeded during the year, and management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by such counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group keeps open avenues for securing debt finance to ensure that funds may be calied upon if and when
nceded for operations and payments due in respect of potential acquisitions The board monitors the Group’s
liquidity peosition on the basis of expected cash flow on a regular basis

The following table analyses the Group's financial iiabilities, placed into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period to maturity at 31 March. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Less than Berween Berween Over
1 ycar T & 2yrs 2&35 vrs 3 yrs
- ) £ 5 [
At 31 March 2023
Trade and other payables 531,422 - - -
Leasc tiabilities 25,137 25,414 - —
At 31 March 2022
Trade and other payables 617,077 - - -
Lease liabilities 30.632 24184 - -
Capital risk

The Group's ohjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as 2 going concern
in order t¢ provide returns to sharehoiders. The Group defines capital as share capital plus reserves. The Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements The board monitors levels of cash and any excess
levels have historically been used for acquisitions, but morc recently for share buy-backs and special dividends




PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA’I‘EMENTS feontinued)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Foreign exchange risk
The Group purchases security-related products in foreign currencies. The Group uscs a number of methods to
protect against foreign currency exchange risk and does not cnicr into long-term contracts that would increase

CUITENCY CXPOSUre

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and cther
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstinces.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The directors are required to make estimates and judgements concerning the future. The resulting accounting
cstimatcs will, by definition, sckiom equal the related actual results. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity and areas where assumptions are significant to the preduction of these financial

statements are disclosed below.

Impairment of goodwill

An impairmenct of goodwill has the potential to significantly impact upon the Group's statement of comprehensive
income for the year To determine whether impairments are required the directors estimate the recoverable
amount of the goodwill. This calculation is bascd on the directors’ expectations of future volumes and margins
based on the results forecast for a three-year period ending 31 March 2026. Fult details are disclosed in note 6.

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving stock
Stock of £38,076 (2022: £57,564) has been identified as slow moving within B2B8G and a provision has been
made against this stock to cover potential obsolescence. The stock provision will be monitored and updated

regularly.
The risks of material adjustment to the provision in the next financial year are as follows:
i) Changes in technology rendering current stock technologically obsolete

i) Customers changing their existing systems which would mean elements of current maintenance stock are

unable to be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuea)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

IFRS 8 requires that operating segments be identified based on internal reporting and decision-making. PHSC ple's
operating segments are by subsidiary company as the directors and management team receive and make decisions

based on monthly management accounts by subsidiary. A description of each subsidiary’s activities is included in
the strategic report on pages 5 to 8,

The following table shows the Group’s revenue and results for the year under review analysed by operating
segment. Segment operating profit represents the trading profit after depreciation, but before tax and management
charges. The management charges represent Group overheads and are reflected in the operating ioss of the
parent company. All revenue arosc in the UK and alf asscts are located in the UK. There is an element of liabilities

that derive from foreign currency due to some of the subsidiaries sourcing goods overseas.

Year £nded 31 March 2023
Securty division - B2BSC

[ealth and safery division
ISL

PHSCL

QLM

ENEN

Quality systems division - QCS

flolding company - PIISC ple

Total

Year ended 31 March 2022
Sconrity division - B2BSGr

Health and safery diviston
ISL

PIISCL

QLM

RBA

Quality systems division - QCS

{lolding company - PHSC ple

Total

Operating Profit/

Other profie/ et (loss) Current Deferred Goodwill Profit

Revenue  income Tepreciation (lass) interest before tax taxation taxaton tmpalrment after 1ax

£000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 5000 £000 000 £'000 £000
830 3 ! (€3] - (&2 10 (€3] -
194 - bl 7 - B i - -
807 - 4 2061 - 208 38 [¢)] -
i0z - 8] 137 - 137 2i) - -
366 - 9 Ta R 9y ~ -
1.773 - 30 482 - 482 [ [4))] -
#5395 - 1% m2 - 172 i - -
- - 14 (442) 1 44D 47 L -

3,438 3 63 303 1 304 (57} [€))] — 243

Operating Profit/

Other profit/ Net (loss) Current Leferred Goodwilt Loss

Revenue incomne  Depreciation (loss)” interest befare tix. taxation mxation  impairment after tax

£'000 £'000 2060 £000 £000 £'000 2000 000 000 £°000
719 3 3 793 - 79 10 14 -
187 - 10 g - 9 1 - -
1.283 10 1 373 - 351 (3067 {1 -
324 % 7 01 - Lol (Ldy - -
304 £ 6 5% - 33 ™ - -
2.098 18 24 54 B Sl4 {73) (48] -
“24 3 8 189 - 189 (3 4] -
- + & A09) - G5! 41 4181 -

3,571 30 59 213 - 215 (54 1 (793) [C%31

" Operaiing profit/(ioss) pre unpairment
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :contnuea)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2023

SEGMENTAL REPORTING — continued
The table below shows assets and liabilities by subsidiary, exclusive of inter-company balances.

Non-curreni Nel
asset  Nou current Current Total Current  Non-current Total operating
additons assets asseis assets liabilities ligbilities  liabilities assels
B £000 £'000 £000 5000 &000 2000 £G00 £ 000
As at 31 March 2023
Security division - B2BS(s - 13 153 66 2 - (28) 438
Heatth and safery division
[SL 16 14 34 68 (64 (8) 72 4
PIISCL 20 20 201 221 (78) [q1V)] (88) 133
QLM - 2 23 95 (122) [€D) (123 (28
Rsa 4 470 23 305 (38 (3) (63 302
40 . 306 143 949 (322 (24) (340 603
Quality systems division - (QCS 1 45 197 242 (204) ()] (213 29
Holding company - PIHSC ple - 2.685 531 3216 39 8 (1073 3109
Sub-toral 41 3,249 1,624 4,873 (613 (81) {694) 4,179
Consohdation adjustments
To goodwill - (33% - (536) - - - (336
To deferred tux - 2 - 2 - (€] {7} (5
Total 41 2,715 1,624 4,339 (613) (88} 701> 3,638
Non-current Net
asset  Non curreml Current Total Current  Noa-current Teotal operating
additions assels assets assets liabilitles liabiltties  liabilitics assels
£0060 £000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £'00C £'000
As at 31 March 2022
Security division - B2RYG 1 248 [¢2)] 197 {41) - €LY 153
{ealth and safery division
st ) Vl 1ol I (71 - {71 39
PHISCL - 4 626 630 (16™) @€Y {168 462
QLM 1 8 218 226 (116) (1) {117 109
RSA ) 13 475 147 622 3N (9 70 552
18 456 1.092 1,588 (it5 {1 (426) 1162
Quality systems division - QCS 3 [N 393 454 {213) (20) <233 219
{Iniding company - PIISC plc - 2,699 127 2326 (293 (i8) (77 2,749
Sub-toral 22 3,504 1,561 5,063 (703) (P)] ({7823 4,283
Consolidation adjusiments
To goodwall - (7653 - £765) - - - {765
To deferred tax - 2 - 2 - (7 [P [&3)
Total 22 2,741 1,561 4,302 (703) (86) (789) 3,513

There were two B2BSG customers where invoices raised during the year exceeded 10% of turnover; £0.248m was
invoiced to one customer representing 30% of turnover and £0.104m to another representing 13% of turnover.
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NOTES TO THE FINA.NCIAL STAT'EMENTS (continued}

Jor the year ended 3§ March 2023

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

31.3.23 3132
4 o
Audit
Fees payable wo the Company’s auditor for the audit of the annual parent Gompany
and consolidated accounts 34,000 3,250
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services provided to the Company
and its subsidiaries:
The audirt of the Company’s subsidiaries under legislative requirements - 23,350
Total audit 34,000 28.600
Tax
Tax compliance services - present year 8,625 7,560
Tax advisory services 2,500 2.000
Tax advisory services - previous year 4,000 -
Total tax 15,125 9.500
Total 49,125 38,100
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Freehold Improvements Fixtures and Right of use
property to property equipment assets Totals
o 5 5 H £ £
COST
At 1 April 2021 571,270 100.132 133,433 123,299 928,134
Additions - - 4,776 17,341 22,117
Disposals - - (14,764 (6.890) (21.654)
At 31 March 2022 371,270 100.132 123,445 133,750 928,597
Additions - - 7.864 33,522 41,380
Disposals - - - - -
At 31 March 2023 571,270 100,132 131,309 167,272 969,983
DEPRECIATION
At T April 2021 196,742 30.054 99,347 52,578 398,721
Charge for year 8,838 7,642 9.086 33,246 58,812
Disposals - - (12,184) (6,890) (19,0743
At 31 March 2022 205,580 57.696 96,249 78,934 438.439
Charge for year 3,338 7.641 8,768 37.787 63.034
Disposals - - - - -
At 31 March 2023 214,418 65,337 105,017 116,721 501,493
NET BOOX VALUE
At 31 March 2023 356,852 34,795 26,292 30,551 468,490
At 31 March 2022 365,690 42,436 27.196 54.816 490,138
At 31 March 2021 374,528 50,078 34,086 70,721 329,413

Depreciation expenses of £63.034 (2022 £58,812) are included in administrative cxpenscs in the statement of

comprechensive income.

The net book value of right of use assets includes £15,973 (2022 £27,248) in relation to short-term iease hoid

property and £34,578 (2022 27 568) in relation to motor vehicles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ccontinued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

GOODWILL
Goodwill
£
COST
At T April 2021 and 2022 5,514,547
Additions _
At 31 March 2023 5,514,547
IMPAIRMENT
At TApril 2021 2,486,084
Impairment 793,418
At 31 March 2022 3,279,502
Impairment -
3,279,502

At 31 March 2023

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2023 2,235,045

At 31 March 2022 2,235,045
At 31 March 2021 3,028,463
Impairment Tests for Goodwill
Goodwill {5 allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units, identified according to subsidiary.
The following table showsra summary of the goodwill allocation by subsidiary:
31.3.23 31.3.22
£ &
B2BSG Solutions Limited B i
Inspection Services (UK) Limited 87,967 87,967
Personnel Health & Safety Consultants Limited 594,952 594,952
QCS Internationat Limited 417,638 417,638
Quality Leisure Management Limited 582,844 582,844
551,644 551,644

RSA Environmental Health Limited

Total goodwill for Group 2,235,045 2,235,045

The dircetors have estimated the value-in-use of goodwiil by discounting estimated future cash flows in accordance
with IFRS. Management have prepared forecasts for 2023-24 and have then assessed whether it is appropriate to
assume that this level of performance will be maintained or improved over the foilowing two years. Forecast
performance for the third vear, 2025-26, is then assumed to continue into perpetuity. The impairment review
calculations use estimated future cash flows based on these forecasts with a terminal value being calculated
using the year 3 expected cash flows. The cash flow projections are based on profits before tax and inter
group management charges and have been discounted using a discount rate of 13% (2022: 11%). This takes into
consideration the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) and factors in an increased risk connected with being

a company quated on AIM.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA]EMENTS (cuntined)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

GOODWIHL — continued

Every year the board assesses the value of goodwill on the statement of financial position and forms a view as to
whether this value is realistic and justifiable. As at 31 March 2023, the board is satisfied that the cash flows {rom
future trading is sufficient to support the carrying value of the goodwill and investment value of cach subsidiary
and for this reason no impairment charge is deemed necessary. [n the prior year the full value of B2BSG's goodwill
of £676,178 was written off, and the carrying value of ISL was reduced by £117,240.

Sensitivity analysis

The calcufations are sensitive to movements in the discount rate and revenue and may therefore result in an
impairment charge to the income statement. An increase of 1% to the discount rate and 3% reduction in revenue
would result in additional impairment charges as follows:

Reduction in Increase in

revenue discount rate

of 3% of 1%

£ £

RSA Environmental Health Limited - 4,108

Additional waork undertaken found actuat results for RSA to regularly exceed rhose forecast vear on vear. Building
in the same uplift to forecasts as prior actuals management are confident that goodwill is not impaired.
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NO’ITES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31.5.23 31322
i &
Trade receivables 580,845 630,617
Less provision for impairment of trade receivables - (2,48%)
Trade receivables (net) 580,845 628,132
Social security and other taxes - 1,405
Other debtors and prepayments 80,117 92,441
Contract assets 13,410 4,400
Total 674,372 726,378
At 31 March 2023 there were no impaired trade reccivables (2022: £2.485).
The ageing of receivables is as follows:
31.3.23 3l 3.22
. & X
Up 10 3 months 541,159 378,761
3 to 6 months 10,197 20,008
Over 6 months 29,489 31,848
580,845 630,617
Movemcents on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:
31.3.23 31322
£ &
At 1 April 2,485 2,343
Provision for receivables impairment - 3,716
Release of provision {2,483) (3,576
— 2,485

At 31 March

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables is included in administrative expenses in the
statement of comprehensive income Amounts charged to the provision account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. Debts older than 90 days have either been provided for or
are considered fully recoverable based on the customer’s payment history and current trading situation.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the year end is the value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any

collateral as security.

Trade receivables and contract assets are the only types of financial asset within the Group that are subject to
IFRS 9's expected credir loss model. The Group has taken into consideration the requirements of IFRS 9 for these
classes of assct; using the IFRS 9 simpiified 2pproach 1o measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifctime
expected loss allowance, did not lead to a material change in the impairment of trade receivables or contract

assets, so no adjustment was made.
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

STOCK
31.3.23 31322
e o £ £
Stock of finished goods 200,169 185,685

£38,076 of stock was written down in the current year (2022 £57.564). The value of stock consumed and
recognised as an cxpense was £452 819 (2022: £418,363).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The cash balances for the purposes of the cash flow statement were as follows:

31.3.23 31322
i £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 749,627 649,363

On 1 Ocrober 2008, PHSC plc entercd into an unlimited multilateral guarantee wich HSBC Bank plc (sce note 123,

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Ordinary Share
shares (Nominal shares premiuim Total
- - ] valuc of 10p) £ . E £
Called up, allotted and fully paid
At 31 March 2021 and 2022 14,677,257 1.467,726 1,916,017 3,383,743
Cancellation of shares held in Treasury {2,830,238) (283,022) - (283,022)
At 31 March 2023 11,847,019 1,184,704 1,916,017 3.100.721

The authorities granted by shareholders at the 2020 AGM and 2021 AGM were utilised to implement two share
buyback programmes. The first was announced on [3 May 2021 and completed on 17 June 2021 and the second
was announced on 21 January 2022 and completed on 16 March 2022, Over that period, the Company's broker
was able to repurchase a total of 2,830,238 ordinary shares on the Company’s behalf for 2 toral consideration
(inctuding costs) of approximately £0.643m. The buyback programmes were largely funded from the surplus
cash held on account following the sale of freehold premises previously held by a former subsidiary, in late
September 2018. The repurchased shares were initially held in treasury but were subsequently cancelled on 6 May
2022, Accordingly, the number of ordinary shares in tssue as at 31 March 2022 was 14,677,257 but subsequently
reduced to 11,847,019 on 6 May 2022,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31.3.23 J31322

4 &

Trade payablcs 48,267 134,316
Social security and other taxes ' 162,451 171,823
Other pavables 25,392 8.830
Accruals 60,258 55.160
Contract liabilities 235,054 246,946
Total 531,422 617,077
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THF. FINANC]AL STATEMENTS (continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

On 1 October 2008, PHSC plc entered into an unlimited multilateral guarantee with HSBC Bank plc. Until the
middle of March 2023 each company within the Group operated its own current account, the baiance on which
was allowed to fluctuate according to trading conditions. Intercst was only charged on 4 net overdrawn balance
as the Group had the right to offset overdrawn accounts with accounts in credit across the Group. It is now the
case that interest is charged on cach account on a standalone basis nccessitating funds to be moved between
Group companies to avoid any interest charges. These movements are reflected through intercompany accounts
which accounts for some relatively large inter-cotupany balances at the year end. The Group has an overdraft
Tfacility of £50,000 which is secured by a debenture including a fixed charge over certain freehold and leaschold
preperty; first fixed charge over book and other debts, chattels, goodwill and uncalled capital, both present and
future; and a first floaring charge over all assets and undertakings both present and future. The overdraft is next

scheduled for review in October 2023.

LEASES
Land & Motor
Buildings vehicles Total
Year ended 31 March 2023 & N i £
Amaounis due within | year - right af use lease liahitities 11,275 13,862 25,137
Amounts due over 1 year - right of use lease Habilities 4,698 20,716 25,414
Total 15,573 34,578 50,551
Land & Motor
Buildings Vehicles Total
Year ended 31 March 2022 & £ &
Amounts due within 1 year - right of use lease liabilities 11,275 19,357 30,632
Amounts due over 1 year - right of usc lease liabilities 8211 15,973 24,184
Torg] 19,486 33,330 54,816
DEFERRED TAX
Other
Tax losses Acceierated short-term
carried caprital lemporary
forward allowances differences Total
Deferred tax asset E & & £
At 1 April 2021 2.017 - - 2.017
Credited 1o income sratement - - 13,574 13,574
At 31 March 2022 2,017 ~ 13,574 13,591
Debited 1o income statement - - (4,037 (4,037>
At 31 March 2023 2,617 - 9,537 11,554
Provision Accelerated
revalued capital Intangible
properties allowances assets Totat
Deferved tax liabilities & £ £ &
At 1 April 2021 34,048 3,424 12,616 30,988
(Credited)/debited to income statement - (82) 10,936 10,834
At 31 March 2022 34,948 3,342 23 552 61,842
Debited to income statcment - 381 - 381
At 31 March 2023 34,948 3,723 23,552 62,223

Deferred tax has been provided at 25% (2022: 25%).
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA‘TEMENTS (contnied)

EXPENSES BY NATURE

for the year ended 31 March 2023

31.3.23 31322
& %
Cost of sales 830,486 1,151,438
Staff related costs 1,596,056 1,998,673
Premises costs 56,097 42,814
Professional fees 211,041 176,183
Other expenses 443% 692 415,813
Goodwill impairment - 793,418
Total 3,137,372 4,178,339
Cost of sales 1,612,543 1,938,870
Administrative expenses 1,524,829 1,446,051
Goodwill impairment - 763 418
Total 3,137,372 4,178,339
GOVERNMENT GRANTS
31.3.23 313.22
£ ]
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - 29,327
— 29,327
OTHER INCOME
31.3.23 31322
£ F3
Apprenticeship grant 3,000 -
3,000 -
EMPLOYEES
Staff costs (including executive directors)
31.3.23 30322
& &
Wages and salaries 1,353,553 1,368,091
Sacial security costs 148,999 140,659
Other pension Costs 72,182 67,765
1,574,534 1,376,515
The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows:
31.3.23 301322
Directors of PHSC plc and subsidiary companics 7 7
Consultants 17 19
Administrative 17 18
Toral 41 44

45




19.

20.

PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FI.NAN CIAL STATEMENTS (continted)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

The aggregate compensation for key management, being the members of the board of PHSC plc and the dircctors

of the subsidiary companies (including de facto directers), was as follows:

31.3.23 31322
_ R s & £
Short-term employee benefits 394,876 373,281
Post-employment benefits 42,111 42,435
Total 436,987 415,716
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
Directors of PHSC plc only
31.3.23 31.3.22
_ & &
Emoluments 167,336 163,817
Pension contributions to money purchase schemes . 23,561 22,548
Total 190,897 186.365
The remuncration of the executive directors of PHSC plc, from all Group companies. was as follows:
Year ended 31.3.23
Short-term employee benefits Post Yer
Waiver/ Pension employment ended
voluntary salary benefits 31322
Salary Bonus reduction sacrifice Benefits Pension Towal Total
& £ & £ £ F & &
$ A King 97,392 3,674  (37,500) (3,600) 2,844 6,415 69,225 69,650
N C Coote 79,833 3,674 - {10,000) 2,483 13,492 89,482 806,453

The benefits relate to health insurance. Stephen King's bonus was added to salary whereas Nicola Coote opted to

take her bonus as a pension contribution.

The fees of the non-executive directors were as follows:

31.3.23 313,22
£ £
G N Webb 16,095 15,131
L E Young 16,095 15,131
Total 32,190 30,262
FINANCE INCOME
31.3.23 31.3.22
. £ &
Finance income
1,346 388

Interest received

i
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS contnued)

Sfor the year ended 31 March 2023

TAXATION
Analysis of tax charge in year
31.3.23 31322

o 5 5
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits in the year ‘ 56,921 535,115
Adjustrments in respect of previous year - 810
Total current tax charge 56,921 55,925
Deferred tax:
Originationr and reversal of temporary diffcrences 4,418 (2,720)
Total deferred tax charge/{credit) 4,418 2,720)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 61,339 53,205

Reconciliation of tax on ordinary activities

The relationship betwecn expected tax expense based on the effective tax rate of PHSC plc at 19% (2022 19%)
and the tax expense recognised in the income statement can be reconciled as follows:

31.3.23 31522

e £ %
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax 364,598 {(577,798)
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities at standard rate of caorporation tax of 19%
(2022: 19%) 57,874 (109,7823
Effects of:
Expeases not deductible for tax purposes - 3,457 151,028
Fixed asset timing differences - 1.411
Effect of tax ratc change on opening deferred tax balance - 9.738
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - 210
Total tax charge 61,331 33,205

The UK government has legislated to increase the main rate of corporation tax to 25% from 1 April 2023,

47



22,

23.

24,

25.

PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuedd

for the year ended 31 March 2023

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

- 31.3.23 31322
Profit/(loss) attributable 1o equity holders of the Group (&) ) 243,259 (631,003)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 11,847,019 13,230,966
Basic caliiitgs/loss) por shaic (pence per share) o 2.05p (4.76)p

There are no dilutive shares, options or warrants in issue.

DIVIDENDS

A total dividend of 1.0p per ordinary share was paid in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022; £64,830 was paid in
January 2022 and the balance of £59,190 in October 2022, An interim dividend of 0.5p in respect of the year ended
31 March 2023 was paid in January 2023 (£59,190) and a final dividend of 1p is proposed, subject to shareholder

approval, for payment in October 2023

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

31.3.23 31322

o B N £
PHSC plc dividends paid to directors

S A King 25,618 28,331

N C Coote 25,503 27,920

G N Webb MBE 193 194

51,116 56,445

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

There is no ultimate controlling party, but the largest sharcholder, Mr S A King, currently holds 21.62% (2022

21.62%) of the issued share capital of PHSC plc.
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coriinned)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Set out below are the Group's financial instruments:

31.3.23 31321
- £ £
Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables : 674,372 726,378
Cash and cash equivalents 749,627 649,363
1,423,999 1.379,741

Financial Habilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 551,422 617,077
531,422 617,077
Due within 1 vear 531,422 617,077
Due in over | year — -
531,422 617,077

Sct out below is a breakdown of revenue
31.3.23 31322
R 5 i
Health and safety services 1,773,111 2,097,323
Qualiry systcms services 834,636 724,142
Security refated products ’ 829,877 749,161
3,437,624 3,570,626

The split of revenue is in line with the segmental analysis in note 3

The following rable provides information about receivables, contract asscts and contract liabilities with customers:

»

31.3.23

£

Receivabies which are included intrade and other receivables 580,843
Contract assets 13,410
Contract liabilities 235,054

31322

i
628,132
4,400
246.945

Contract assets relate to uninvoiced work carried out at the reporting date where performance obligations had
been met. Contract liabilities relate to deferred revenue in respect of ongoing services where the revenue is being

recognised acress the term of the customer contract,
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Revenuc deferred into future periods

PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS rontinued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

REVENUE — continued
Significant changes in the contract assets and contract liabilities balances during the period are as foliows:

31.3.23 31 3.22
% X

(235,054) (246,945}
13,410 4,400

Revenue accrued in current petiod
246,945 233 (32

Deferred revenue recegnised in the period

The performance obligations for all revenues that have been deferred into future periods have been satisfied by the
following year end as the performance obligations on the contracts are no longer than onc vear in length. There
are no impairment losses in relation to the contract assets recognised under IFRS 15.
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PHSC plc

Registeved number: 4121793

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2023

31.3.23 31.3.22
Note & £
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 372,926 386,372
Investumnents 10 2,312,278 2,312,278
2,685,204 2,698,650
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 11 987,951 1,478,265
Cash and cash equivaicnts 12 306,560 91,355
1,494,511 1,569,820
Total Assets 4,179,715 4,268 470
Cuarrent Liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 107,791 28,338
Corporation tax - -
107,791 29338
Nen-Current Lizbilities
Deferred taxation 14 48,274 48,823
48,274 48,823
Total Liabilities 156,065 78,161
Net Assets 4,023,650 4,190,309
Capital and reserves atiributable to equity holders of the Group
Calied up share capitai 13 1,184,704 1,467,726
Sharc premium account 15 1,916,017 1,916,017
Capital redemption reserve 426,650 143,628
Merger relief reserve 133,836 133,836
Retained eamings 362,443 529,102
4,023,650 4,190,309

The Company has elected to take the exempuion under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the
parent Company profit and loss account. The loss for the year was £48,189 (2022: loss of £325,024).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board on 7 August 2023 and signed on its behalf by

S A King Director
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PHSC plc

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Merger Capical
Share Share Relief Redemption Retained

Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
o & & & & £
Balance at 1 April 2022 1,467,726 1,916,017 133,836 143,628 529,102 4,190,300
Loss for year attributable to equity halders - - - - (48,189) (48,189)
Cancellation of own shares (283,022 - - 283022 - -
Dividends paid - - - - (118.470) (118,470
Balance at 31 March 2023 1,184.704 1,916,017 133,836 426,650 362,443 4,023.630
Balance at 1 April 2021 1,467,726 1,916.017 135,836 143,628 1.629,079 5,290,246
Loss for year actributable to equity holders - - - - (325,0%4) (325,034
Cancellation of own shares - - - - (644 738) (644,738)
Dividends paid - - - - (130,205 (130,205)
Balance at 31 March 2022 1.46™.726 1,916,017 1%3.8306 143,628 522,102 1,190,309




PHSC plc

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2023

31.3.23 313.22
Note & &
Cash flows generated from/(used by) operating activities:
Cash generated from/(used by) operations { 319,903 (885,497
Group tax relief receipt 47,226 40,823
Net cash generated from/(used by) operating activities 367,129 (844.674)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends from subsidiary companies 165,000 673,000
Interest received 1,346 54
Net cash from investing activities 166,346 675,054
Cash flows used by financing activities
Dividends paid 1o Group shareholders (118,470) (130,205
Purchase of own shares - (644,738
Net cash used by financing activities (118,470 (774,943)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 415,005 (944,363)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 91,555 1,036,118
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 506,560 91,333
All changes in liabilities arising from financing relate entirely to cash movemenis.
NOTES TO THE COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2023
31.3.23 31.3.22
5 £
I. CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED BY) OPERATIONS
Loss before taxation and interest (262,310) (1,030,119
Depreciation charge 13,446 14,069
Impairment of investrment - 800,928
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 490,314 {667,600)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 78,453 (2,775
319,903 (885,497

Cash generated from/(used by) operations
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sfor the year ended 31 March 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as noted
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with UK adopted internadonal accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. [t also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of iudgement
or complexity. of drcas Where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disciosed
in note I8,

The Company has elected to apply the exemprion under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present
the parent company profit and loss account. The loss for the year before dividends reccived from subsidiaries
(2023 £165.000; 2022: £675,000) was £213.189 (2022: {oss of £1,000,034) There were no items of other
comprehensive income in cither period.

Company Law requires the directors to consider the appropriateness of the going concern basis when preparing
the financial statements. The directors confirm that they have considered a period up to 12 months from the date
of signing and any severe but plausible downside factors and that the going concern basis remains appropriate. In
accordance with Financial Reporting Council guidance the directors have provided reasons for this opinion in the
going concern scction of the strategic report on page 11,

There arc no standards that are issued but not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transacrions.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue

Management charge income is recognised when the service the Company has provided is fulfilied.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full on temporary differences arising between the ax bascs of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amouants in the financial statements. The deferred income 1ax is not accounted for it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or Hability in a transaction, other than a business combinaticn, that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or toss, Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date and arc
expected te apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

L
&

Segmental reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of ather business segments. The directors regard the operations
of the Company as being one business scgment. Further analvsis of revenue is disclosed in note 3.

Pensions

The Company operates a defined contribution penston scheme. Contributions payable for the yedr are charged
to the income statement.

W
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PHSC plc

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS rcontinued

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

ACCOQUNTING POLICIES — continued

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to
write off the cost of non-current assets, less their estimated residual value, over the shorter of the expected useful

life or lease term, on the following bases:

Frechold buildings - 2% of cost on a straight-line basis

Imptrovements to property - o a straighit-line basis (10% of cost if expected useful life is shorter than
the lease term)

Planet and equipment - 25% reducing balance basis

Investments
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less amounts provided for any impairmenz in value An

impairment review is carried out each year.

Impairment of tangible and intangible asscts

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the investnent’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable dmount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting marker conditions less costs
to sell, and value in yse. based on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment losses are charged to

administrative expenscs.

Taxation

Current income tax assets/liabilities comprise those claims from or obligations to fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the statement of financial position date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable

profit for the year.

Provisions
These are recognised when the Company has a2 present legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of past
events, when it is probabie that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount

can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settde the
obligation, using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Financial Instruments

Trade receivables and contract assets are initially stated at the transaction price and subsequently measured
at arnortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts for accounts receivable arc
net of allowances for expected credit losses. The Company evaluated the expected credit losses on trade
receivabies by reviewing historical data, adjusted for forward-looking factors to the debtors and the economic
environment. Individual receivables are only written off when management deems them not collectible.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. The proceeds of share issues received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital at nominal value and the excess
credited to the share premium account. The capital redemption reserve arose when the Company repurchased
some of its own shares. At that point, the nominai value of those shares was transferred to the capital redemption
reserve. The merger relief reserve represents the premium of any shares issued in part consideration on
acquisitions in accordance with section 612 of the Companies Act 2006,



PHSC plc

NOTES TO TI{E FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS (continied)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Dividends

Dividends received from subsidiary companies are recognised at the peint that the right to receive the dividend
has been established

REVENUE

The revenue of the Company during the year was generated in the UK and derives from the management charge
levied on the subsidiary companies and is recognised when the service is delivered

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

The profit beforc taxation is stated after charging:

31.3.23 31322
£ . *
Depreciation - owned assets 13,446 14,069
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Full details are given on page 46 of the Group accounts.
STAFF COSYS
The average number of employecs during the year was as follows.
- N 032 nsn
Directors 4 4
Consultants 1 H
Administration 2 2
7 7
£ &
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
Wages and salaries 163,747 161,689
Social security costs 21,265 20,234
Other pension costs 14,254 14,081
199,266 196,004

The directors are considered to be Key management personnel of the Company.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

Full details are given on page 39 of the Group accounts




PHSC plc

NOTES TO TIIE TINANCIAL STATEMENTS teontinued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

FINANCE INCOME

31.3.23 31322
5 £
Finance income :
Interest received 1,346 54
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Freehold
land and Freehold Plant and
buildings improvements equipment Totals
£ EA £ 5
COST OR VALUATION
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 441,908 42,814 19,157 503,879
DEPRECIATION
At 31 April 2021 67,380 26,857 9.201 103,438
Charge for year 8,838 2,742 2,489 14,069
At 31 March 2022 76,218 29,599 11,690 117,507
Charge for year 8,838 2,741 1,867 13,446
At 31 March 2023 85.036 32,340 13,557 130,953
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2023 356,852 10,474 3,600 372,926
At 31 March 2022 365,690 13,215 7.467 386,372
374, 528 15,957 9,956 400,441

At 31 March 2021
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10.

PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cuniinued)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

{nvestment in shares of subsidiary undertakings

31.3.23 31322

£ 3

At 1 April 2,312,278 3113206
Impairment of investment in B2BSG - (683,688)
Impairment of investment in ISL - (117,240)
At 31 Mairch 2,312,278 2,312,278

Every year the board assesses the carrying value of investment’s on the statement of financial position and takes
a view on whether it is realistic and justifiable. At 31 March 2022, the board had difficulty in predicting that the
Security Division would return to the level of profit required to support the investment pertaining to B2BSG in the
statement of financial position. Accordingly, the full carrying valuc of the investment in BZBSG of £683,688 was
impaired. The carrying value of ISL was also reduced by £117,240 to reflect the platcau in spending on its services
and rising costs in an inflationary environment. Having made thesc adjustments, the board feels that any further
impairments as at 31 March 2023 are unnccessary with all investment carrying values being fully supported by
cxpected future cash flows.

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost and include the following;

Proportion
Class of of voting

Name of Company shares held righis held Registwered office
B2BSG Solutions Limited Ordinary  100% The Old Church, 31 Rochester

Road, Aylesford, Kent, ME20 7PR
Camerascan CCTV Limited Ordinary  100% The Old Church, 31 Rochester

Road, Aylesford. Kent, ME20 7PR
Envex Company Limited Ordinary  100% The Old Church, 31 Rochester

Road, Aylesford. Kent, ME20 7PR
[n House The Hygiene Management Company Limited Ordinary  100% The O1d Church, 31 Rochester

Road, Aylesford, Kent, MEZ0 7PR
[nspection Scrvices (UK) Limited Ordinary  100% The Old Church, 31 Rochester

Road, Avlesford, Kent, ME20 7PR
Personnel Health & Safety Consultants Limited Ordinary  100% The OId Church, 31 Rochester

' Road, Aylesford, Kent, ME20 7PR

Quatity Leisure Management Limited Ordinary  100% The Oid Church, 31 Rochester

Road, Aylesford, Kent, ME20 7PR
QCS International Limited Ordinary 100% 9 Cumbernauld Business

Park, Cumbernauld, North

Lanarkshire. Scotland G67 3J7
RSA Environumental Health Limited Ordinary  100% The Old Church, 31 Rochester

Road. Avlesford, Kent, MIE20 7PR
Safetymark Certification Services Limited Ordinary  100% The Qid Church, 31 Rochester

Road, Aylesford, Kent, ME20 7PR
SG Systems (UK) Limdted Ordipary  100% The Old Church, 31 Rochester

Road, Aylesford. Kent, ME20 7PR

For the year ended 31 March 2023. the Group made use of an exemption from audit under section 479A of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies. The Parent Company under this exemption has given
guarantees for all the above named subsidiaries where an audit would have been required by law for the year
ended 31 March 2023
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13.

PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS wontinued)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
31.3.23 31322
& &

963,188 1,443,068
- 1,405
24,763 33,792

Amount owed by subsidiary undertakings
Social security and other taxes
Other debtors and prepayments

987,951 1,478,265

The amount owed by subsidiary undertakings is subject to I[FRS 9's expected credit loss model. The Company
applies the I[FRS 9 simplified approach to measuring cxpected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all balances owed from subsidiary undertakings. This did not lead to 2 material change in the
assessment of the potental impairment of amounts owed from subsidiary undertakings, such that no adjustment

has been madc.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31.3.23 313 22
& £
506,560 91,555

Bank

On 1 Octoeber 2008, PHSC plc entered into an unlimited multilateral guarantec with HSBC Bank plec. Until the
middle of March 2023 each company within the Group operated its own current account, the balance on which
was allowed to fluctuate according to trading conditions. Interest was only charged on a net overdrawn balance

" as the Group had the right to offset overdrawn accounts with accounts in credit across the Group. It is now the

case that interest is charged on each account on a standalone basis necessitating funds to be moved between
Group companies to avoid any interest charges. These movements are reflected through inter-company accounts
which accounts for some relatively large intercompany balances at the year end. The Group has an overdraft
facility of £50,000 which is secured by a debenture including a fixed charge over cerin freehold and leasehold
property; first fixed charge over book and cther debts, chattels, goodwill and uncalied capital, both present and
future; and first floating charge over all assets and undertakings both present and future. The overdraft is next
scheduled for review in Qctober 2023, On 31 March 2023, PHSC plc's Company balance was £506,560 (2022:
£91,553) within the Group’s cash at bank and in hand figure of £749,627 (2022, £649,363).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31.3.23 31322

£ £

Trade payables 4,124 4,145
Social security and other taxes B,204 4,956
Amounts owed to group undertakings 48,213 -
Other payabies 18,220 1,168
Accruals 28,970 19,069
107,791 29,338
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

14, DEFERRED TAXATION

31.3.23 31322

T

Deferred taxation - accelerated capital allowances 48,274 48 823
31.3.23 313422

I £ &

At 1 April 48,823 38,031
Deferred tax (credit)/charge in year (549) 10,792
At 31 March 48 274 48,823

15, SHARE CAPITAL
Number of
shares Ordinary Share

{Nominal value shares premiism Total

Called up, allotted and fully paid of 10p cach) & & &
At 31 March 2021 andd 2022 14,677,257 1,467,726 1,916,017 3,383,743
Canccllation of shares held inTreasury (2,830.238) (283,022) - (283,022)
AL 31 March 2023 11,847 019 1.184,704 1,916,017 3,100,721

The authorities granted by shareholders at the 2020 AGM and 2021 AGM were utilised to implement two share
buyback programmes. The first was announced on 13 May 2021 and completed on 17 June 2021 and the sccond
was announced on 21 fanuary 2022 and completed on 16 March 2022, Over that period, the Company’s broker
was able to repurchase 2 total of 2,830,238 ordinary shares on the Company’s behalf for a total consideration
(including costs) of approximately £0.645m. The buyback programmes were largely funded from the surpius
cashr held on account following the sale of freehold premises proviously hield by a former subsidiary, in late
Scptember 2018, The repurchased shares were initially held in treasury but were subsequently cancelled on 6 May
2022 Accordingly, the number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 March 2022 was 14,677,257 but subsequently
reduced to 11,847,019 on 6 May 2022
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Sfor the year ended 31 March 2023

16. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

A management charge is levied by PHSC pic on its subsidiary companies to reflect the central services it provides

31.3.23 31.3 22
£ 5
Management charge from PHSC plc to subsidiary companics 186,000 180,000

The inter-company balances berween PHSC plc and the other companies within the PHSC plc Group are

summarised below.

31.3.23 31322
& &

Armounts owed by group undertakings
B2BSG Solutions Limited 170,456 2,039
Camerascan CC1TV Limited 229,701 229,701
In House the Hygiene Management Company Limited 469,304 469,304
Inspection Services {(UK) Limited 5,711 17,248
Personnel Health & Safety Consultants Limited 60,898 402,541
QCS Internationat Limiied 14,884 189,495
Quality Leisure Management Limited - 80,795
12,234 51,945

RSA Environmental Health Limited
963,188 1,443,068

Amounts owed to Group undertakings

Quality Leisure Management Limited 48,213 -

48,213 -

PHSC plc received dividends from subsidiaries as follows:
Inspection Services (UK) Limited - 15,000
Personnel Health & Safety Consultants Limited 40,000 350,000

QCS International Limited 50,000 180,000
Quality Leisure Management Limited 50,000 80,000
RSA Environmental Health Limited 25,000 50,000
165,000 675,000

PHSC plc dividends were paid to directors as follows:
S A King 25,618 28,331
N C Coote 25,303 27,920
G N Webb MBE 195 194
51,116 56,445
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PHSC plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fcontinued)

for the year encled 31 March 2023

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Set out below are the Company’s financial instruments:

31.3.23 31322
& &

Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade and other reccivables 987,951 1,478,265

987,951 1,478,265

Financial Labilities at amortised cost

Trade and other payables 107,791 29,338
107,791 29338
Due within ! vear 107,791 29,338

Due in over 1 vear - -

107,791 20,338

Full details of the overdraft facility can be found in note 12.

The main tisk arising from the Company’s financial instruments is Lquidity risk. The Company sceks to manage
this risk by ensuring that sufficient liquidity is available from current banking facilities to meet foreseeable needs
and 0 invest cash assers sately and profitably. This policy has remained unchanged from previous periods

The fair values of the Company's financial instruments are not considered to be materially different to their book
value.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Company may be required ro make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and
judgements arc based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The principal areas where judgement was exercised are as follows:

Lmpairment of investments

An impatrment of tovestments has the potential to significantly impact upon the Company's statement of
comprehensive income for the year. tThe directors have estimated the value-in-use of investments by discounting
estimated future cash flows int accordance with IFRS. Management have prepared forecasts for 2023-24 and then
have assessed whether it is appropriate to assume that this level of performance will be maintained or improved
over the following two years, Forecast performance for the third year, 2025-26, is then assumed to continue into
perpetuity. The impairment review calculations use estimated future cashflows based on these forecasts with
a rerminal value being calcufated using the year 3 expected cashflows. The cash flow projections are based
on profits before tax and inter group management charges and have been discounted using a discount rate of
13% (2022 11%). This takes into consideration the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) and factors in an
increased risk connected with being a company quoted on AIM. .

PARENT UNDERTAKING

There is no wdmate controlling party but the largest shareholder, Mr § A King currenidy owns 21.62% (2022:
21.62%) of the issued share capital of PHSC plc.
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PHSC plc

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the AGM of PHSC plc will be held at 10.00 a.m. onThursday 28 September 2023 at The Old
Church, 31 Rochester Road, Aylesford, Kent ME20 7PR to consider the following resolutions of which resolutions 1 to 5
will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resolutions 6 and 7 will be proposed as special resolutions.

v

To receive the annual report and audited accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023,
To declare a final dividend of 1.0p per ordinary share.

To reclect Graham Webb as a director.

To reappoint Crowe UK LLP as auditor to the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next general meeting.
at which accounts are laid before the members and to authorise the directors to determine their remuneration.

THAT, in substitution for any existing such authority, the directors be generally and unconditionally authorised in
accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares
in the Company or to grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert any security inte, shares in the Company up to
a total nominal amount of £394,900 during the period commencing on the date of the passing of this resolution
and expiring at the conclusion of the AGM in 2024 or 15 months from the passing of this Resolution, whichever
is earlier, but so that the authority shall allow the Company to make before the expiry of this authority offers or
agreements which would or might require shares to be allotted, rights to be granted or securities to be converted
after such expiry and notwithstanding such expiry the directors may allot shares, grant rights or convert securitics
under such offers or agreements.

Special resolutions

6.

THAT, subject to and conditional upon the passing as an ordinary resotution of resotution number 3 set out in this
notice of this meeting the directors be empowered under section 570 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act™) to
allot equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act) for cash; under the authority conferred by resolution 5
above as if section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited
to:

(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue, open offer or other offer of securitics in
favour of the holders of ordinary shares on the register of members at such record date(s) as the directors may
determine where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of the ordinary shareholders
are proportionate {as nearly as may be) io the respective numbers of ordinary shares held by them on any
such record date(s), subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary
or expedient 1o deal with fractional entitlements or legal or practical probletms arising under the laws of any
overseas territory or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange or by virtue of shares being
represented by depositary receipts or any other matter whatsoever; and

(b) the allotment (otherwise than under sub-paragraph (a) above) of equiry securities and/or the sale and transfer
of shares held by the Company in treasury (as the directors shall deem appropriate) to any person or persons
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £236,940.

such power to expire at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company in 2024 or 15 months from the passing of
this Resolution, whichever is earlier, unless such power is varied, revoked or renewed prior to such time by the
Company in general meeting by special resolution; except that the Company may before such expiry make offers
or agreements which would or might require equity securitics to be allotted after such expiry and notwithstanding
such expiry the directors may allot equity securities under such offers or agreements.
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PHSC plc

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (coninued

THAT, the Company be generally and unconditionally authorised to make market purchases {as defined in the

Companies Act 2006) of ordinary shares of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company (*ordinary shares”) on such
terms and in such manner as the directors may from time to time determine, provided that:

(@

(b)

(<

@

©)

(H

the maximum number of ordinary shares authorised to be purchased shall be 1,777,053,
the minimum price which may be paid for an ordinary share is 10 pence;

the maximum price which may be paid for an ordinary share is an amount equal to 105% of the average of
the middie market quotations for an ordinary share (as derived from the London Stock Exchange) for the five
business days immediately preceding the datc on which the ordinary share is contracted to be purchased,

the minimum and maximum prices per ordinary share referred o in sub-paragraphs (b) and () of this resolution
are in each case exclusive of any expenses payable by the Company;

the authority conferred by this resolution shall expire at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company in 2024 or
15 months from the passing of this Resolution, whichever is earlier, unless such authority is varied, revoked or
rencwed prior o such time by the Company in general meeting by special resohuion; and

the Company may make a contract to purchase ordinary shares under the authority hereby conferred prior
to the expiry of such authority which will or may be completed wholly or partly after the expiration of such
authority.

By order of the board

=

SGH Company Secretaries Limited Registeredd Office:
Secretary The Old Church

31 Rochester Road

10 August 2023 Aylesford

Kent ME2( 7PR
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PHSC plc

NOTICE OF ANNUM GENERAL MEETING fcontmued)

Notes.

1. Right to attend, speak and vote
If you wish to attend, speak and vote at the AGM you must be on the Company’s register of members at 10 00 a.m. on 26 September 2023 This will enable

us o confirm how many vates you have on a poll. Changes to the eatries in the register of members after that time. or. if the AGM is adjourned, 48 hours
before the ume of any adjourned meeting. shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend. speak or vote at the AGM

2. Appointment of proxies
f you are a member of the Company you may appoint one or more proxies to exercise all or any of your rights o attend, speak and vote at the meeting.

You may only appoint 4 proxy using the procedures set out in these notes and in the notes on the proxy form. which you should have received with this
notice of meeting,

A proxy does not need 1o be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting 1o represent you. Details of how o appoint the chair of the meeting
or another person 25 your proxy using the proxy form are set out in the notes on the form  [f you wish your proxy to speak on your behalf at the meeting
you will need to appoint your own choice of proxy (not the chair) and give your instructions directly to them. You may appoint more than one proxy in
rekition to the AGM provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the righis autached to a different share or shares which you hold  [If you wish to
appoint more than ong proxy you may photacopy the proxy form or alternatively you may contact the company secreary

3. Appointment of proxy using hard copy proxy form
The notes to the proxy form explain how to direct your proxy how o vote on cach resolution or withhold their vote. A vote withheld is not a vote in

faw, which means that the vote will not be counted in the calcutation of votes for or against the resolution. If you do not indicate on the proxy form how
your proxy should vote, they will vote or abstain from voting at their discretion They will also vote (or abstain from voting) at they think fit in relation ©
any ather marcter which {5 put before the meeting,.

To appeint a proxy using the proxy form, the form must be completed. signed and received by the Company Secretary at Shakespeare Martineaw, Gth
Eloor, 60 Gracechurch Street. London EC3V OIR no laier than 48 hours (excluding non-working days) before the meeting Any proxy forms (including
any amended proxy appoiniments) received after the deadline will be disregarded.

The completed form may be returned by zny of the following methods

Sending or delivering it to the company secretary. Shakespeare Martineau, 6th Floor, 60 Gracechurch Street, London EC3V OHR

. Scanning it and sending it by email to shaun.zulafgar@shma . co.uk

If the shareholder is 2 company, the proxy form must be executed under its common scal or signed on s behalf by an officer or attorney  Any power of
artorney or any other authority under which the proxy form s signed (or a cluly certified capy of such power or authority) must be included with the

proxy form

4. Appointment of proxy by joint members
In the case of joint holders, where more than ene joint holder purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted by the most senior holder will
be accepted Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the jount holders appeur in the company’s register of members in respect of the

joint holding (the firstnamed being the most senior)

3. Changing yout instructions
To change your proxy instructions simply submit 4 new proxy appoiniment using the methods set outabove. The amended instructions must be received

by the Company Secretary by the same cut-off time noted shove Where you have appointed a proxy using a hard copy proxy form and would like to
change the instructions using ancther hard copy proxy form, please contact the Company Secretary on G20 7264 4346, I you submit more thao one vatid
proxy form, the one received last before the latest tune for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.

6.  Termination of proxy appointments

In order to revoke a proxy instructicn. you will need to inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy notice clearly stating your intention 10 revoke
your proxXy appointment to the Company Secretary, Shakespeare Martinedu, 6th Floor 60 Gracechurch Street. London EC3V OLIR. Alternatively. you may
send the notice by email to shaun.rutafgar@shma.co.uk. [a the case of @ member which is a company, the revocation notice must be executed under its
comrmon sexl or signed on its behalf by an officer or attorney. Any power of aitorney orf any other authority under which the revocation notice is signed

(or a duly certified copy of such power or aurhority) must be included with the revocation notice.

In either case, your revocation notice must be received by the Company ng later than 48 hours (exeluding non-working days) before the meeting  If your
revocation is received after the deadline, your proxy appointment will remain valid. {lowever, the appointment of a proxy does not prevent you from
attending the meeting and veting in person  If you have appointed a proxy and attend the meeting in person, your proxy appoiniment will autematicaily

be terminated

7. Communications with the Company
Except as provided above. members who have generzl queries about the meeting should ielephone the Company Secretary on 020 7264 434G (no other

methods of communication will be accepted). You may not use any electronic address provided cither in this notice of annual general meeting: or any
relared documents, to commumnicate with the Company for any purposes other than thosc expressly stated

8. Issued shares and total voting rights
As 4t 500 p.m. on the day immediately prior 1o the dake of posting of this notice of meenng, the Company's issued share capiral comprised 11,847,019

ordinary shares of 10p cach (excluding treasury sharesy Each ordinary share carries the right to one vote at a general meeting of the Company
and, therefore. the total number of voting rights in the Company at that time was 11,847,019,
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PHSC plc

Proxy form for use by holders of ordinary shares in PHSC plc
at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM™)
to be held on Thursday 28 September 2023

Please read carefully the formal notice of meeting, the accompanying notes and the explanation of the
business to be transacted at the AGM (contained in the directors’ report) before completing this form.

As a2 member of PHSC plc you have the right to attend, speak atand vote at the AGM. If you cannot or do not
wish to attend the AGM but still wanr to vote you can appoint someone to attend the AGM and vote on your
behalf Thal person is known as a“proxy”. You can use the proxy form to appoint the chair of the meeting
or someone else, as your proxy. Your proxy does not have to be a member of the company.

W e (FULL NAME [N BLOCK CAPITALS)

being a member(s) of PHSC ple, appoint the chair of the meeting of ...

. (see note 1) as my/our proxy to attend and, on a poll, to voie for
me/us and on my/our behalf as md:cated below at the AGM and a1 any adjournment (see notes 2, 3 and 4).

Please clearly mark the boxes below to instruct your proxy how to vote on each resolution

VOTE AT
RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST WITHHELD DISCRETION
L To receive the report and accounis L _— 1 C 1
2 To declare a final dividend N C C—1 R
3. To re-elect Graham Webb MBE as a director 1 [ [::! k::]
4. 7To reappoint the auditors and authorise the
directors to set their fees 1 L [ Lo
5. To authorise the directors to allot shares I:[ E__:] [: S
6. To disapply pre-emption rights L L ] C
7. Yo authorise share buybacks I L] L (N
Signature(s) ... ... ... e i L (seenote 5 Date L2025

Notes;

1 If you wish 10 appoint &5 a proxy someone other than the chair of the meeting, please delete the words “The chair of the meeting”
and insert the name of the other persan (who need not be 4 member of the Company)  All aiterations made to the proxy form must be
initialled by the signatory.

2 The compietivn and return of the proxy form will rot prevent you from attending the AGM and voting in person should you subsequently
decide to do so.

3. [Fyou wish your proxy to cast all of your votes for of against a resolution you shouwld insert an “X™ in the appropriate box. If you wish
your proxy to cast only some vores for and some against insert the relevant number of shares in the appropriate boX. In the absence of
inglructions your proxy may vore or abstain from voting as they think fit on the specified resolutions, and, unless instructed otherwise, may
also vote or abstain from voting as they think fit un any other business (including on a resclution to antend a resolution, to propose a new
resofution or to adjourn the meeting) which may properly come before the meeting

4 The *Vote Withheld”™ option is provided 50 that vou ¢an instruct your proxy o 2bstain from voting on a paricular resolution, A "Voie

Withheld” is not 2 vote in law and will not be counied in the calculation of the proportion of the votes ~for” or ~against” a resolution The

“At Discretion” option {s provided so that you can give discretion to your proxy 1o voie or abstain from ¥orng on 4 pardeular resolution as

they think fit.

The proxy form must be signed by the shareholder or their attorney Where the shareholder is a corporation the signarure must be under

seal or that of a duly authorised representative. In the case of joint holders, anyone may sign the form The vote of the senjor joint holder

(whether in person or by proxy) will be taken to the exclusion of all othiers. seniority being determined by the order in which the rames

appesr in the register of members for the joint shareholding.

0

6 To be valid, this proxy form and any power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed or a cerrified copy of such authority. must
be deposited with the company secretary, Shakespeare Martineau, 6th Floor 60 Graccchurch Sireet. London EC3V OTIR no later than 48
hours {excluding non-working days) before the time of the AGM or any adjournment thereof.
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